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Safisfy the needs and preferences of various customer segments
via high-precision positioning of its brands and innovative and

Embry

superiorquality products
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Sales Network
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Retail Outlets
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An Extensive Network Capturing Growing Opportunities In China

The Group's sales points span the whole nation, with footprints in all major cities such as Beijing, Shanghai,
Chongqing, Tianjin, Guangzhou, Hong Kong and Macau. Such an extensive network enables the Group to
efficiently respond to custfomer needs and deepen its market penefration in China.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 1,084 retail outlets, comprising @15 concessionary counters
and 169 retail shops in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.
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Financial Highlights
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Corporate Information
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Optimise the sales network, explore and
develop the online shopping market to

improve the overall operational efficiency
of its sales network
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Chairman’s Statement
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Leveraged on multi-brand strategy to maintain its

Brand imfluence and

Market share,

B S RIRE

To All Shareholders,

It is my pleasure to present the audited annual results of Embry
Holdings Limited for the year ended 31 December 2022 (“the
Current Year") on behalf of the Board of Directors.

In 2022, the coronavirus (COVID-19) continued to mutate and
spread rapidly, resulting in repeated and multiple outbreaks in
China. Due to the impact of the epidemic, the economy was
significantly under pressure. According to the National Bureau of
Statistics, China’s gross domestic product (GDP) in 2022 grew by
3.0% yearon-year, lower than the expected growth rate of 5.5%.
The slowdown in economic growth directly affected the retail
consumer market and total retail sales of consumer goods for the
year decreased by 0.2% year-on-year. For the retail sales of
commadities, the sales of garments, footwear, hats and knitwear fell
by a relatively higher percentage of 6.5% yearonvyear. By refail
formats, the retail sales of department stores decreased by 9.3%
yearonyear. Consumer sentiment was very weak, especially in the
sub-essential underwear retail market, and the business environment
was full of challenges.

Embry Holdings Limited 215518 BRAF / Annual Report F3R 2022

and strengthened various brands with
different positioning in view of the
segmented markets
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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NGOK Ming Chu
i DI Bk

Chairman of the Group

REBEERFE

In the light of multiple resurgence of the epidemic, it was inevitable
for the Group to suspend business at some of its points of sale.
Facing the extremely challenging operating environment, the Group
responded prudently, continued to adopt cost contfrol measures, and
implemented flexible production to deploy production according to
demand and market conditions. Since entering the postpandemic
period, spending habits have changed, e-commerce sales have
become more mature, and sustainable green concepts and ‘China-
chic’ products have been sought after by the market. The Group
continued to optimise production technology and product design,
and formulate diversified sales strategies to cater to the ever-
changing needs of the market and consumers.

EEEERRE SRR  EalDHEMED
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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With the rising importance of market segmentation, the Group
leveraged on its consistent multi-brand strategy to maintain its brand
influence and market share during the Current Year. The Group also
adjusted marketing arrangements in a timely manner according fo
changes in the market environment, and strengthened its various
brands with different positioning in view of the segmented markets to
fulfil the needs and preferences of varying customer groups. The
Group operates a total of seven brands, including flagship brands
EMBRY FORM and FANDECIE, functional brand COMFIT, online
brand E-BRA, men's underwear brand IVU, offline wholesale brand
IADORE and luxury brand LIZA CHENG.

leveraging on years of experience accumulated in the lingerie
industry in China, the Group actively improved the overall
operational efficiency of its sales network and stepped up its efforts
in developing the online shopping market. In 2022, the Group
further optimised its sales network, with a net decrease of 167 refail
outlefs. It refained 1,084 refail outlets with higher sales efficiency,
and its sales network covered more than 350 cities in China. The
Group appropriately adjusted the proportion of online and offline
sales distribution by relocating or closing low efficiency stores,
optimising the omni-channel coverage of the sales network.

During the Current Year, the Group’s revenue was
HK$1,334,269,000, and gross profit was approximately
HK$1,001,249,000, with a gross profit margin of 75.04%. Loss
aftributable to owners of the Company was approximately

HK$51,239,000.

Although the epidemic control has been gradually relaxed, it will
take time for the epidemic fo recede and for life fo refurn to normal,
and the economic outlook remains uncertain. Therefore, the Board of
Directors has resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend. The Company believes that this measure is a prudent and
responsible means of preserving cash for the longterm financial

health of the Group.

looking ahead to 2023, with the gradual relaxation of domestic
epidemic prevention and confrol at the beginning of the year, the
domestic economy is expected fo see a mixed recovery in the first
half of the year. The pace of recovery will vary across sectors, but
the overall pace remains below the normal level. The overall
economy will not refurn to normal growth until the second half of the
year or later. It is expected that it will take some time for the
consumer sector fo fully recover. It is expected that the recovery of
sub-essential underwear market will lag behind the overall market.

Embry Holdings Limited Z#175 R ARAT / Annual Report F ¥R 2022
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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The Group will prudently respond to the current economic
environment, pay close attention to the trends of the consumer
market, confinue fo review and adjust its business strategies, and
continue fo explore different segmented markets to grasp the
opportunity of growing e-commerce sales in the postepidemic era,
striving fo expand the market share of its brands in the online refail
market and optimise its sales network. The Group will continue to
leverage on the advantages of resource deployment through ifs self-
production and sales model as well as the ancillary logistics facilities
of intelligent finished goods and materials warehouses fo enhance
production and logistics efficiency, and respond more quickly to
market demand. The Group will uphold its commitment to quality,
respond to market changes with a flexible and effective multi-brand
strafegy, and strive to create long-term value for shareholders through
prudent allocation of resources.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the Board of Directors
and all our employees for their contribution and efforts made during
this challenging year and continuing to walk hand in hand with the
Group. | would also like to express my gratitude to our shareholders
and business partners for their frust and support. In order to thank
shareholders for their frust in us, the Group will continue to make its
best endeavours to create greater values for its shareholders,
customers, employees and business pariners, stepping forward fo a
brighter future together.

Ngok Ming Chu

Chairman

23 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Business and Operations Review

In 2022, the coronavirus (COVID-19) continued to mutate and
spread rapidly, resulting in repeated and multiple outbreaks in
China. Coupled with the Russio-Ukraine conlflict, the U.S. inferest
rafe hike together with balance sheet shrinkage and depreciation of
Renminbi, China’s economy was significantly under pressure.
According to the National Bureau of Statistics, China’s gross
domestic product (GDP) in 2022 grew by 3.0% yearon-year, lower
than the expected growth rate of 5.5%. The slowdown in economic
growth directly offected the refail consumer market and total refail
sales of consumer goods for the year decreased by 0.2% yearon-
year. For the refail sales of commodities, the sales of garments,
footwear, hats and knitwear fell by a relatively higher percentage of
6.5% year-on-year. By retail formats, the retail sales of depariment
stores decreased by 9.3% yearon-year. Consumer sentiment
continued to be sluggish, especially in the subessential underwear
refail market, and the business environment remained challenging.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Current Year"), the
Group's revenue decreased by 19.25% to HK$1,334,269,000
from that of the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Prior Year”).
Gross profit margin increased by 2.0 percentage points to 75.0%.
loss attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$51,239,000, representing an increase from loss attributable o
owners of the Company of HK$27,485,000 recorded in the Prior
Year. loss per share was HK12.13 cenfs (2021: HK6.51 cents).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Although the pandemic control has been gradually relaxed, it will
take time for the pandemic to recede and for life to return to normal,
and the economic outlook remains uncertain. Therefore, the board of
directors has resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend. The Company believes that this measure is a prudent and
responsible means of preserving cash for the longterm financial
health of the Group.

Brand management

In 2022, the Group continued to make good use of the advantages
of its multi-brand strategy and adjusted marketing arrangements in
response fo market demand for its seven brands, namely EMBRY
FORM, FANDECIE, COMFIT, E-BRA, IVU, IADORE and LIZA
CHENG. The Group catered fo the increasingly segmented markef
by highlighting unique brand personalities to fulfil the needs and
preferences of varying custfomer groups. The Group enhanced ifs
brand competitiveness and expanded market coverage while
consolidating ifs flagship brands, EMBRY FORM ond FANDECIE,
which contributed the majority of sales.

In terms of brand promotion, the Group suspended most of its offline
brand promotion in 2022 due to multiple resurgence of the
pandemic and focused on online promotion, reserving resources for
optimal promotion when the market sentiment recovers.

In response to the national dual carbon strategic objectives of
"carbon peak” and “carbon neutrality”, and to let consumers
understand Embry’s long-standing brand philosophy of sustainable
green development, the Group held EMBRY FORM's “MADE IN
GREEN" environmental protection theme exhibitions during the year
in order to encourage more people fo adopt a green and carbon-
reducing lifestyle. Moreover, to convey the concept of "green
ecological textiles” to consumers, the Group launched the “Jungle
Secret” series designed by an infernationally renowned underwear
designer, including a variefy of underwear products that combine
green living and fashionable aesthetics. The Group also invited an
international supermodel to become EMBRY FORM's green
and healthy experience officer to deliver the message of
green and healthy living fo consumers through multimedia
and further promote the Group's sustainable low-carbon
concept.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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In recent years, the 'China-chic’ trend has swept the domestic market, and
different brands have launched products related to the ‘China-chic’ trend,
which are highly sought after by consumers, especially young consumers.
Following the trend, the Group launched a variety of ‘China-chic’ underwear
products in line with Chinese festivals and wedding traditions during the year,
and collaborated with young artists to create the “Xi le Jia An ((BBZEZRZ))"
red product theme painting and produce a series of online and offline
promotional materials. Taking oriental aesthefics as an entry point, the Group
combined quality products with traditional elements to build the brand value of

EMBRY FORM's 'Chinachic’ products.

In the post-pandemic consumption era, online shopping has become an
indispensable part of people’s lifestyle and e-commerce platforms continue fo
flourish. The Group kept abreast of the traffic frends and made use of social
media platforms to promote its brands and strengthened the development of
underwear styles exclusively for e-commerce. The Group confinued fo cooperate
with Internet celebrities to promote its brands and products, increasing brand
exposure and market penetration. The Group also leveraged customer interactions
to build good cusfomer relationships and enhance brand loyalty.

FFEBMREESEANTS > TRMEESEEEBRERER  UREHEELHEFEHEENERE - EHIEE
B MERNEETEEBERIEEEN  HHEREMRRNKER  UnEFFEMR SRR (BER L)AL M
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MERTZLE > BERBRERELE)  BEYRFEFBESMLRRETHE

Sales network

In 2022, the Group continued to optimise ifs sales network. As of 31
December 2022, the Group had 1,084 refail outlets in fofal, including
Q@15 concessionary counters and 169 retail sfores, representing a net
decrease of 167 retail outlets as compared to the end of 2021. The
Group seized the opportunity of online sales, and actively explored and
developed the online shopping market to improve the overall operational
efficiency of ifs sales network. The Group sfrategically adjusted its store
network and appropriately integrated the proportion of online and offline
sales to achieve optimal channel coverage.

HERE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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During the Current Year, the Group continued to operate online
mirror stores with product information synchronised with the physical
refail stores, achieving mutual empowerment of online and offline
channels fo affract fraffic. It eliminated competition between physical
and online stores, and also provided a convenient alternative
consumption channel. The closed loop of operation helped optimise
deployment of sfore inventory and inventory management.

Product design, research and development

The Group has always adhered to excellent product quality and
comfortable wearing experience and continued to upgrade product
designs and source the right materials to meet consumers’ demand
for lightweight underwear products while ensuring a comfortable
cutting and design. The Group has also confinued fo improve its
production technology, striving to improve production efficiency and
operational efficiency of its supply chain in order to maintain its
leading position in the highly competitive market.

During the Current Year, the Group launched a full range of popular
new collections, including: EMBRY FORM's "Classic Temptation 4%
# 5% 2%)" and "Summer Romance (E H #& £ $)": FANDECIE's
"Summer Style (E B # #8)" and "Camping Time (& & K Jt)";
COMFIT s "Stylish Girl (#&582%27%)" and "Healthy New Breath (252
IR )" LIZA CHENG's "Meet the Princess (B8 E42)" and “Bird
of Paradise (XE )", E-BRA's "Simple and Soft (f§5%)" and “Fall
in love (1B/0))"; IADORE's "Flowery (1£72)" and “limpid and Sweet
(FBFEMER)"; IVU's "Perfect Score (i &5)".

In 2022, the Group obtained new patents in China, including 14
ufility model patents and 2 oppearance design patents. As at 31
December 2022, the Group had a fotal of 105 patents, including
68 utility model patents, 11 invention patents and 26 appearance
design pafenfs.

Production capacity

The Group has its own production bases in Jinan, Shandong
Province and Changzhou, Jiangsu Province. The plant in Shandong
is equipped with intelligent finished goods and materials
warehouses. Based on the recurring pandemic situation during the
year, the Group carefully analysed the sales of different brands and
segmented markets, reviewed and adjusted its production volume
from time to time and implemented flexible production to maximise
production efficiency and enhance supply chain efficiency.
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Human resources

The Group understands that employees are one of the cornerstones
of the Group's operations. The Group not only trained its employees
and improved their welfare, but also reviewed the internal
management culture from time fo time to enhance the sense of
belonging of employees. Meanwhile, the Group also actively
improved production technology together with the utilisation of
automated logistics system, improved the workflow of employees
and raised production efficiency so as to mitigate the overall cost
increase pressure and improve operational efficiency.

As at 31 December 2022, the number of employees of the Group
was approximately 4,568 (2021: approximately 5,154). Total staff
cost [including wages and basic salaries, commissions, bonuses,
contributions to the refirement benefits scheme, share option
expresses and excluding directors’ and chief executive's
remunerations) for the Current Year was HK$464,669,000 (2021
HK$538,719,000).

Financial Review

Revenue

During the Current Year, revenue was HK$1,334,269,000,
representing a decrease of 19.25% from the Prior Year, mainly
attributable to the continued depreciation of Renminbi and the
continued weak consumer sentiment as a result of multiple resurgence
of the COVID-19 in China and imposition of strict quarantine
measures or lockdown restrictions in some cities in China, which led
fo the suspension of business at some of the Group's points of sale.

During the Current Year, revenue from retail sales was
HK$877,155,000, accounting for 65.74% of the Group's total
revenue and representing a decrease of 28.42% from the Prior
Year. The Group recorded an increase in sales on e-<commerce
platforms. Revenue from the Internet increased by 14.21% to
HK$411,478,000 in 2022, accounting for 30.84% of the total
revenue. The increase was mainly due to the overall ecommerce
business growth resulting from the increasing reliance of consumers
on online shopping during the pandemic.

The mainland China market is the main source of income for the
Group. During the Current Year, revenue from the mainland China
market was HK$1,287,846,000, accounting for 96.52% of the

Group's fofal revenue.
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Among the seven brands operated by the Group, EMBRY FORM, the
flagship brand, and FANDECIE, the young and energetic brand, are
the main sources of income for the Group and their confributions to
the total revenue accounted for 52.25% and 19.05%, respectively.
EMBRY FORM's revenue amounted to HK$697,133,000, which
decreased by 14.90% from the Prior Year. FANDECIE's revenue
amounted to HK$254,143,000, which decreased by 25.58% from
the Prior Year. The other brands E-BRA, COMFIT, IVU, IADORE and
LIZA CHENG's revenue for the Current Year amounted to
HK$375,360,000, accounting for 28.13% of the overall revenue.
Lingerie continues to be the core product line of the Group. During
the Current Year, sales of underwear decreased by 20.45% from
the Prior Year to HK$1,134,280,000, representing 85.01% of the
revenue of the Group. Sales of sleepwear amounted to
HK$139,551,000, accounting for 10.46% of the revenue of the
Group, while sales of swimwear amounted to HK$4 1,767,000,
accounting for 3.13% of the revenue of the Group.

Gross profit

During the Current Year, the Group recorded a gross profit of
approximately HK$1,001,249,000, representing a decrease of
16.96% from the Prior Year. It was mainly aftributed to the decrease
in the number of business days of sales channels due to the
pandemic as well as the lack of consumer confidence in the general
economic environment dampening consumer senfiment, underwear
brands catered to market needs with larger discounts compared to
the Prior Year. However, the reversal of invenfory impairment under
cost of sales for the Current Year amounted to approximately
HK$43,174,000, which raised the gross profit margin by 2.07
percenfage points to /5.04% as compared to 2021.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains decreased by 60.28% to
HK$30,104,000 for the Current Year (2021: HK$75,797,000),
mainly due to the exchange loss of HK$21,228,000 (2021:
exchange gains of HK$4,745,000) from the depreciation of
Renminbi, and the decrease in subsidy income to HK$20,075,000
(2021: HK$37,586,000). Besides, the rental income for the
Current Year was HK$21,251,000 (2021: HK$18,912,000).
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Operafing expenses

During the Current Year, the selling and distribution expenses
decreased by 19.04% to HK$859,270,000 (2021
HK$1,061,332,000), accounting for 64.40% (2021: 64.23%) of
the Group's revenue. The decrease in expenses was mainly
aftributed to the strict cost control of the Group while the ratio of
selling and distribution expenses to overall sales remained at the
same level as compared with that in the previous year.

Administrative expenses and impairment of financial assets totalled
HK$ 187,966,000, similar to the Prior Year, but the proportion of
administrative expenses and impairment of financial assets to the
GCroup's revenue increased to 14.09% (2021: 11.47%).
Administrative expenses and impairment of financial assets included
a provision for bad debts of frade and other receivables totalling
HK$ 11,870,000 (2021: HK$979,000] for the year.

Impairment of right-of-use assets and other expenses

During the Current Year, impairment of rightof-use assets and other
expenses [the "Non-Operating Expenses”] amounted to
approximately HK$23,570,000 (2021: HK$36,879,000],
representing a decrease of HK$13,309,000 from 2021. It was
mainly affributed to the decrease in the provision for impairment of
right-of-use assets in retail sfores and charitable donations for the
Current Year as compared fo 2021.

Loss

Loss attributable to owners of the Company was HK$51,239,000 for
the Current Year, while loss affributable to owners of the Company for
the Prior Year was HK$27,485,000. The increase in loss was mainly
due to the decrease in operating income brought by the suspension of
business at some of the Group's points of sale due to the impact on
domestic refail market during the Current Year, together with the
decrease in other income and gains as mentioned above.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group finances its operations mainly with internally generated
cash flows. Financial position of the Group remained healthy during
the Current Year. As at 31 December 2022, the Group's cash and
cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$380,178,000
(2021: HK$378,636,000), maintaining at a stable level. As at 31
December 2022, the Group's interestbearing bank borrowings
amounted to HK$327,472,000 (2021: HK$346,482,000). As at
31 December 2022, equity attributable to owners of the Company
was HK$2,272,332,000 (2021: HK$2,516,273,000). The
gearing ratio of the Group was approximately 14.4% (2021:
13.8%).
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Capital expenditure

During the Current Year, the capital expenditure of the Group
amounted to HK$20,934,000 (2021: HK$11,230,000), which
was mainly used for the first phase of the photovoltaic power
generation project of the plant in Shandong. The project will be test-
run and is expected to help the Group save on electricity expenses.
As at 31 December 2022, the capital commitments of the Group
amounted to HK$116,154,000 (2021: HK$117,764,000),
which were contracted but not provided for in the financial
statements.

Charge on the Group's assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group pledged Hong Kong
invesiment properties, buildings and rightof-use assets with net book
values of HK$92,000,000, HK$2,512,000 and
HK$ 11,743,000, respectively, to banks to finance loans.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2022, the fotal issued share capital of the
Company was HK$4,224,000 (2021: HK$4,224,000),
comprising 422,416,638 (2021: 422,416,638) ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each.

Significant investment held, material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
and associated companies

During the Current Year, the Group was neither involved in any
significant investment, nor any material acquisitions or disposals of
any subsidiaries or associated companies.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group carries out ifs transactions mainly in Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to profect against the volatility associated with foreign
currency transactions and other financial assets and liabilities
created in the ordinary course of the business.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, bank guarantees given in lieu of the
Group's property renfal deposits and utility deposits amounted to
HK$428,000 (2021: HK$184,000). Save as disclosed above,
the Group had no other significant contingent liabilities, nor any
litigation or arbitration of material importance.
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Prospect

Llooking ahead to 2023, with the gradual relaxation of domestic
pandemic prevention and control at the beginning of the year, the
market expects a mixed recovery in the overall economy in the first
half of the year. The pace of recovery will vary across sectors, but
the overall pace remains below the normal level and it will not return
to normal growth until the second half of the year or later. Given the
uncerfain global economic and political environment, the Group
expects that it will take some time for the consumer sector to fully
recover although the Chinese government has made great efforts to
stabilise the economy. It is expected that the recovery of sub-essential
underwear markef will lag behind the overall market.

leveraging on years of experience and brand strength accumulated
in the lingerie industry in China as well as ifs agility to change, the
Group is confident that it can prudently respond to the current
economic environment and progress steadily. Since consumers are
still conservative towards buying underwear products, the Group will
closely monitor market trends to make timely adjustments in terms of
product design, production technology, marketing and sales
channels to fulfil the changing consumer needs and preferences.

In the future, the Group will continue to review and adjust its
business strategy and respond calmly in the economic environment
which has not yet fully recovered. Meanwhile, the Group will
continue to explore different segmented markets, grasp the
opportunity of growing ecommerce sales to match the consumption
pattern in the postpandemic era, and strive fo expand the market
share of its brands in the online retail market and optimise the
effectiveness of the sales network. In terms of production, the Group
will respond promptly to market needs, leverage on the advantages
of resource deployment through its self-production and seltdistribution
model as well as the ancillary logistics facilities of intelligent finished
goods and materials warehouses to enhance production and
logistics efficiency, and actively optimise its supply chain.

Adhering to the commitment to quality, the Group will confinue fo
adopt a flexible and effective multi-brand strategy to respond to the
everchanging market and strive to create long-term value for
shareholders through prudent and effective allocation of resources.
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9 According fo the national refail consumption survey results released by China General Chamber of Commerce and the
China National Commercial Information Centre in 2022, EMBRY FORM lingerie ranked top three in 2021 in terms of
composite market share in similar products in the industry as well as with respect to group sales

9  Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was granted the award of National (Shenzhen) Excellent Enterprise with Foreign
Investment - Excellent Tax Payment and Turnover (2021-2022) by the China Associafion of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment and Shenzhen Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment

9  Embry (China) Garments Ltd. and Embry (Shandong) Garments Limited were granted the Contribution Award for
Innovation in Knitted Underwear by the China National Textile and Apparel Council

9 Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was awarded ceriificates of Exemplary Enterprise of Integrity in Product and Service
Quality and Enterprise of Leading Quality in the Garment Industry and the Underwear Industry by the China
Association for Quality Inspection

©  Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was awarded a plague of recognition by the Knitwear Branch of National Technical
Committee on Texiile Standardization and the Sportswear Branch of National Technical Committee on Sports Goods
Standardization in China as a Leading Entity of Standardization Work in 2022

9 Embry (China) Garments Ltd. received honorary credentials as a Leading Green Enterprise from the Zhonghuan
United (Beijing) Cerification Center

9  Embry (Changzhou) Garments Ltd. and Embry (Shanghai) Company Limited received award cerfificates of
Exemplary Enterprise of Integrity in Product and Service Quality and Enterprise of Leading Quality in the
Garment Industry from the China Association for Quality Inspection
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9 Embry (Changzhou) Garments Ltd. was rated by the Indusiry and Information Technology Bureau in Changzhou as a
Municipal Green Factory

9 Embry (Shandong) Garments Limited was rated by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the People’s
Republic of China as a National Green Factory

9 Embry (Shandong) Garments Limited was named by the CPC Zhanggiu Disfrict Committee of Jinan City and the
Zhanggju District Government of Jinan City as the Top 100 Real Economy Enterprises in Zhangqiu District in 2021

9  Embry (Shandong) Garments Limited was endorsed as a Low-carbon Enterprise in the 2022 National Textile
Industry Green Development Labour Competition jointly organised by the China National Texfile and Apparel
Council and the National Trade Union of Financial and Commercial Workers, Llight Industry and Textile Workers,
Tobacco Industry Workers

9  Embry (Shanghai) Company Limited was accredited as the Top 100 Garment Enterprises in China (2021) by the
China National Garment Associafion

9 EMBRY FORM was awarded the fitle of Shenzhen Top Brand by the Shenzhen Top Brand Evaluation Committee

9  EMBRY FORM was granted the Ingenuity Quality Award and Charity Award of China’s Underwear Industry
(2021-2022) ot the 2022 China (Shenzhen) International Brand Underwear Fair

9  COMFIT was granted the Emerging Brand Award of China’s Underwear Industry (2021-2022) ot the 2022 China

[Shenzhen) International Brand Underwear Fair

9 EMBRY FORM received the Hong Kong Top Brand (2007-2022) award from the Hong Kong Brand Development
Council and The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong

9  EMBRY FORM was awarded the Quality Tourism Services Scheme Certification Mark by the Hong Kong Tourism
Board

9 Embry (H.K.) Limited was accredited by The Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority as a Good MPF Employer
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Directors and Senior Management

BEHRAEREYE

Executive Directors

Madam Ngok Ming Chu, aged 86, is the Chairman, an Executive
Director and a director of cerfain subsidiaries of the Company.
Madam Ngok served as Chairman of the Company from March
2014 to August 2018 and has been reappointed as Chairman of
the Company since March 2022. Madam Ngok is in charge of the
Croup's business planning. She joined the Group in 1980 and has
over 42 years of experience in the lingerie industry. Madam Ngok
graduated from and is currently an Honorary Professor of Beijing
Agricultural Engineering University (now known as China Agricultural
University). She is also a shareholder and director of Harmonious
World Llimited (the controlling shareholder of the Company), the
spouse of Mr. Cheng Man Tai (a substantial shareholder of the
Company), the mother of Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza (the Chief
Executive Officer and an Executive Director of the Company) and
the step-mother of Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen (an Executive Director
of the Company).

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, aged 60, is the Chief Executive Officer, an
Executive Director and a member of both the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. She is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Cheng is
responsible for the day-to-day management of the businesses of the
Group. Ms. Cheng joined the Group in 1993 and has over 30
years of experience in the lingerie industry. She obtained a
Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from the University of
Southern California and a Master of Business Administration
(Executive) degree from the City University of Hong Kong. Ms.
Cheng was awarded the prize for Young Industrialist in Hong Kong
in 1999 and obtained the World Outstanding Chinese Award in
March 2009. Furthermore, Ms. Cheng was elected as the Honorary
Lifetime President of Shenzhen Underwear Association in March
2021. She is currently a member of the Yangpu Committee of the
Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference in Shanghai, @
member of the China National Textile and Apparel Council, a Vice
Chairman of China Knitting Industrial Association, a Vice President
of the China Association for Quality Inspection, a Vice Chairman of
Shanghai Garment Trade Association, a Vice President of Shenzhen
Garment Industry Association, and a Vice Chairman of The Hong
Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited. Ms. Cheng is also a
director of Harmonious World limited (the controlling shareholder of
the Company), the daughter of Mr. Cheng Man Tai (a substantial
shareholder of the Company) and Madam Ngok Ming Chu (the
Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company), and the
younger sister of Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen (an Executive Director of
the Company).
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Directors and Senior Management (Contlnued)

EREMAMEHEHE

! (#

Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen, aged 73, is an Executive Director of the
Company and currently the Assistant General Manager (Research
and Development) of Embry (China) Garments Ltd. He first joined the
Group in May 2005 and has rejoined the Group since April 2017
He is also a director of Changzhou Duosiwei Fumiture Decoration
Construction Co., ltd. He is in charge of the research and
development centre of the Group and is responsible for innovations
of technologies, processes and equipment for the production of
products. Mr. Cheng has over 26 years of experience in
technological research and development in the manufacturing of
display fumniture, display dummies and also garment processing. Mr.
Cheng is the son of Mr. Cheng Man Tai [a substantial shareholder
of the Company), the step-son of Madam Ngok Ming Chu (the
Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company) and an elder
brother of Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Lliza (the Chief Executive Officer and
an Executive Director of the Company).

Ms. Lu Qun, aged 69, is an Executive Director of the Company and
currently the Assistant General Manager (Strategic Management) of
Embry (China) Garments lid. and the General Manager of Embry
(Shandong) Garments Limited. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Lu is responsible for the functions
of strategic management and project management in Mainland
China. She joined the Group in April 2003 and has over 43 years
of experience in management and administration. Ms. Lu obtained
a Master's degree in Business Administration from Beihang University
(previously known as Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics), the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), in 2001.
She has also obtained an undergraduate diploma in international
trade from the University of International Business and Economics,
the PRC, in 1992. Ms. Lu completed a senior managers’ human
resources management fraining course held by Tsinghua University,
the PRC, in 2006. She obtained the International Project
Management Professional Certificate in 2002 and has been
accredited as a Certified Senior Project Manager (IPMA Level B)
since 2018. She was also qualified as a Professional of Carbon
Emission Management in the PRC in 2022.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Siu Ki, alias, Kevin Lau, aged 64, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of both the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. lau is currently running his own
management consultancy firm, Hin Yan Consultants Limited. Mr. Lau
has previously worked at an international accounting firm for over
15 years. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now
known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in 1981. Mr. Lau
is a fellow member of both the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants ["ACCA”") and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He was a member of the worldwide Council of
ACCA from May 2002 to September 201 1. Mr. Lau is currently the
company secretary of Yeebo (Infernational Holdings) Limited, Hung
Fook Tong Group Holdings Limited and Expert Systems Holdings
Limited, and an independent non-executive director of Binhai
Investment Company Limited, Comba Telecom Systems Holdings
Limited, FIH Mobile Limited, Samson Holding lid., TCL Electronics
Holdings Limited and IVD Medical Holding Limited, the shares of
which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”). Mr. lau joined the Company in November
2006.

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, dlias, Eddie Lee, aged 57, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director, the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of both the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. lee is a consultant of
Howse Williams. He received his LL.B (Honours) degree and
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong in
1988 and 1989 respectively. He was then admitted as a solicitor
in Hong Kong in 1991 and in England and Wales in 1997. Mr.
lee is currently an independent non-executive director of NetDragon
Websoft Holdings Limited, Newton Resources ltd, Tenfu (Cayman)
Holdings Company Limited, Red Star Macalline Group Corporation
lid., FSE Lifestyle Services Limited and Ten Pao Group Holdings
Limited, the shares of these companies are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He had been an independent non-executive director of
landsea Green Properties Co., lid., China BlueChemical lid. and
Glory Sun Financial Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange, until his resignation on 19 June 2020, 27 May
2021 and 17 July 2022 respectively. Mr. Lee joined the Company
in November 2006.
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Directors and Senior Management (Contlnued)
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Prof. Lee T. S., dlias, Lee Tien-sheng, aged 74, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of both the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Prof. lee is currently the Professor
Emeritus of the Department of Supply Chain and Information
Management of Hang Seng University of Hong Kong (formerly
known as Hang Seng Management College). He was the Dean of
the Faculty of Business Administration of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong from 2002 to 2008, Vice-President [Academic &
Research) of Hang Seng Management College from 2009 to
2014, the Head and Professor of the Department of Supply Chain
and Information Management of Hang Seng Management College
from 2009 to 2015 and a Chair Professor of Feng Chia University,
Taiwan from December 2015 to January 2019. Prof. lee obtained
his PhD in Business Administration and Master's degree in Business
Administration from the University of Missouri-Columbia, the United
1982 and 1978 respectively. He also holds a Master's
degree in Management Science and a Bachelor's degree in
Electronic Engineering from the National Chiao Tung University of
Taiwan. Prof. lee’s research and teaching interests include supply
chain management, quality management and business process

States in

reengineering. He has published his research in many academic
journals. Prof. Lee joined the Company in November 2006.

Senior Management

Ms. Law Yuk Ying, aged 43, is the Group Financial Controller. Ms.
Llaw is responsible for the supervision and management of the
Group's overall financial matters and investor relations. She joined
the Group in 2008 as the Group Accounting Manager and was
appointed fo the present position in 2019. Ms. law obtained a
Bachelor's degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. She is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Ms. law has over 20 years of experience in auditing, financial
accounting, corporate investment and financing, as well as
management.

Mr. Chung King Yeung, aged 56, is the Group Assistant Internal
Audit Director and is in charge of the infernal audit functions of the
Group. Mr. Chung joined the Group in 2021
years of experience in external audit, financial analysis and internal
audit. He obtained a Bachelor's degree in Economics from La Trobe
University, Ausfralia, o Master's degree in Business from Monash
University, Australia, and a Juris Doctor degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chung is a CPA member of the
Certified Practising Accountants Australia and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

and has over 30
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board and the management of the Company are committed to
the maintenance of good corporate governance practices and
procedures. The Company believes that good corporate governance
provides a framework that is essential for effective management, a
healthy corporate culture, sustainable business growth and
enhancing shareholders’ value.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
"CG Code") as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of
corporate governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with all
code provisions under the CG Code so far as they are applicable
and a maijority of the recommended best practices under the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Review
Period”).

Corporate Culture

A healthy corporate culture set up by the Company, including
integrity and accountability, is vital for the Company to achieve its
vision and mission towards sustainable growth. All Direcfors must act
with integrity. It is the Board’s role to lead by example, foster and
promote a corporate culture with core principles to guide the
behaviours of its employees, and ensure that the Company’s vision,
values and business strategies are aligned fo it.

Integrity underpins the behaviours of the Group's employees in
working with each other and conducting business activities with
business partners. The Group’s Code of Ethics and Conduct has
defined the behavioural guidelines for its employees fo reinforce the
Group's values of acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly.

The culture of accountability begins from the strong leadership of the
Board, with delegation of authorities fo its Board Committees, the
Chief Executive Officer, the management of the respective business
units, fo every individual employee throughout the Group. With clear
objectives and goals set in business plans, budgets and forecast
authorised by the Board, augmented by open communication and
fair staff performance evaluation mechanisms, the management and
employees are committed to and accountable for achieving the
fargets for the longterm success of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Strategic Planning

The Board carries out ongoing comprehensive review of the Group's
formulation of business strategies and policies, which cover
positioning in the major markets and product lines, leading drivers of
change in the industry and markets, and development sirategies o
seize growth opportunities in long run. Details of the Company'’s
strategic priorities are available in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management and Discussion and Analysis section of this Annual
Report.

Governance Structure

BIRRM

SR AR 2
EFEFENTEREF B RBRNGIEE
T2ERE BEEZETEREREHE
il HEBITEEATZEENTITBEE » UKD
BEREERIBEMEERRRE - XAF
MRBEHF BN FIFREFRESUKRE
BESRRITEE -

Board of Directors
(4 Executive Directors
and 3 Independent
Non-Executive Directors)

-
(MEZRTEER
= REIIFNITES)

Remuneration Committee
(1 Executive Director
and 3 Independent

Non-Executive Directors)

Audit Committee
(3 Independent
Non-Executive Directors)

e BEZEZEY
(—BRTEER (Z2BIFRTES)
= REIUIFRTES)

Nomination Committee
(1 Executive Director
and 3 Independent

Non-Executive Directors)

RREEY
(—BRTEER
= REIIFRNITES)

Audit Centre

BEBEl
(REREE 5t & 48 ES)

(Assistant Director — Internal Audit)
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Directors

Board Composition

The Directors place great emphasis on the fiduciary nature of the
Board's responsibilities and strive to be accountable to the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors, namely
Madam Ngok Ming Chu [Chairman), Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza (Chief
Executive Officer), Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen and Ms. Lu Qun; and
three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Siu Ki,
Mr. lee Kwan Hung and Prof. Llee T. S. The number of Independent
Non-Executive Directors represents more than one-third of the Board.
The biographical details of and relationships among the members of
the Board are disclosed under the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 26 to 29 of this annual report.

The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects the
necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Group and for
effective leadership as all the Executive Directors possess extensive
experience in management and the research and development,
design, production and marketing of lingerie products while the
three Independent Non-Executive Direcfors possess professional
knowledge and broad experience in finance, law and management
respectively. The Direcfors are of the opinion that the present structure
of the Board can ensure the independence and objectivity of the
Board and provide a sysfem of checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of the shareholders and the Company.

Board Diversity

A board diversity policy has been formulated by the Board sefting
out the approach o maintaining a Board with a diversity of directors.
The Company recognises the benefits of diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in supporting its sustainable development. Al
Boord appointments will continue fo be based on meritocracy with
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and confribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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For the purpose of implementation of the board diversity policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted:

e atfleast two members of the Board shall be female;

® at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be
Independent Non-Executive Directors;

®  af least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or financial management related professional
qualifications and experience; and

®  af least 80% of the members of the Board shall have more

than 20 years of experience in the industry he/she is

specialised in.

The Board is committed to further improving the diversity of the
Board as when suitable candidates are identified.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
board diversity policy and considered it to be effective for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Gender Diversity

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group.
The following table sefs out the gender ratio in the workforce of the
Croup, including the Board and senior management as at the date
of this annual report:
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Female Male
7t Bk
Board o=y 42.9% (3) 57 1% (4)
Senior Management ShEIEE 50.0% (1) 50.0% (1)
Other employees =R == 03.8% (4,294) 6.2% (282)
Overall workforce 2HREET 03.7% (4,298) 6.3%(287)
Further details on the workforce of the Group by gender can be ~ AEBEZRMFIB D ETHE—FFIBHNER
found in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the  BIIRIE ~ H B KREARRS
Company.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Article 108(A) of the articles of association of the Company provides
that one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is
not three or multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third shall refire from office by rofation provided that every
Director shall be subject to refirement at least once every three years
at the Company’s annual general meeting and shall be eligible for
re-election. Under Article 105, the office of a Director of the
Company is liable to be vacated in certain circumstances and the
Company may remove any Director of the Company by an ordinary
resolution at a general meeting as prescribed in Arficle 114,

The appointment of new Directors and nomination of Directors for re-
election at annual general meetings are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee will then be put to the Board for decision. New Directors
appointed by the Board are subject to re-election by shareholders af
the next following annual general meetfing pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company. In considering the appointment of new
Directors, the Nomination Committee will assess the candidate
according fo the criteria set out in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing
Rules. In the case of a candidate for an Independent Non-Executive
Director, he/she should also meet the independence criteria set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each of the Executive Directors has respectively entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years.
Fach Executive Director is entifled to a discretionary management
bonus provided that the aggregate amount of the bonuses payable
fo all the Executive Directors for any financial year of the Company
shall not exceed 8% of the audited consolidated net profit of the
Group (affer taxation and non-controlling interests and payment of
such bonuses) for that financial year of the Company. An Executive
Director shall not vote on any resolution of the Directors regarding
the amount of the management bonus payable o him/her.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors was appointed for
a ferm of two years with a formal letter of appointment setting out the
key terms and conditions of his appointment. Save for the directors’
fees and the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
(as defined on page 60 of this annual report) to each of them, none
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors is expected fo receive
any other remuneration for holding his office as an Independent
Non-Executive Director.
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Board Independence

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board and conducted review of
such mechanisms on an annual basis.

All Directors are entifled to seek, at the Company's expense,
independent professional advice reasonably necessary for
discharging their duties as Directors.

The Nomination Committee annually assesses the independence of
each Independent Non-Executive Director during his term of
appointment. In February 2023, the Company received from each
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors a written confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based
on such confirmations and the report of the Nomination Committee,
the Company considers that all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors continue to demonstrate strong independence and all
remain independent.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
mechanisms and considered them fo be effective for the year ended
31 December 2022.

Proceedings of Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings

The Board considers that all meetings should be legally and properly
convened. The Chairman of the Board takes the lead to ensure that
Board meetings and Board committee meetings are convened in
accordance with the requirements set out in the articles of
association of the Company, the ferms of reference of the respective
Boord committees and the Listing Rules.

In convening Board meetings, the Chairman is responsible for
drawing up and approving the agenda for each meeting after
consultation with all the Directors and the Company Secretary. Prior
nofice of each regular Board meeting is given fo all the Directors at
least 14 days in advance and the Directors are invited to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. Agenda and accompanying
Board papers are sent to all the Directors af least 3 days (or such
other period as agreed) prior fo meefings.

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In addition,
special Board meetings are held when necessary. Such Board
meefings involve the active parficipation, either in person or through
other electronic means of communication, of all the Directors.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to
provide sufficient nofice to give all the Directors an opportunity to
affend. For special Board meetings, reasonable notice is given.
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The Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secrefary fo ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The minutes of Board meefings record in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board, including all concerns raised by the
Directors and dissenting views expressed. The minutes of all Board
meetings and Board committee meetings are available for inspection
by any Director, auditor or any relevant eligible parties who can
have access to such minutes.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The record of attfendance of individual Directors at the Board
meetings, Board committee meetings and annual general meeting
held during 2022 is set out in the following table:

FrEER & ESATMENERMRE » UL
BEESLRFEAAEEARERBEGESR
B o

EFXENERCRECRICBREFEMERES
BEFIE  HPEEREFRUNAEREIE
ERERORBER - EFESE ~ LT
AEERNSERCENERA LTI ERMR
BEFEEENEFEET TR

ESHHESCER
TREISEEFN T _FRETHNESS
g% EFLECERRRRBERENHE
SOk

Number of Meetings Attended/Held

BRLUERYBTRY
Annudl
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board  Commitiee = Committee ~ Committee Meeting
Directors EE B3R
EZE BKEET REZET FMESE BEXE
Executive Directors BITEE
Cheng Man Tai L) e
(Former Chairman) * CIESS) 0/2 N/ARER N/ATRER N/AREBAR N/ATER
Ngok Ming Chu EEAT *
(Chairman/* (F/%) 6/6 N/AREA N/AFRER N/ARER 1/1
Cheng Pik Ho liza oI
[Chief Executive Officer) (TE#E %) 6/6 N/ARER 3/3 3/3 1/1
Cheng Chuen Chuen BEE 6/6 N/ARER N/ATREAR N/ATEA 1/1
Lu Qun ik 6/6 N/ARER N/ATBER N/ATER 1/1
Independent Non-Executive HIIIEHITESR
Directors
Lau Siu Ki 2RE 6/6 3/3 3/3 3/3 1/1
lee Kwan Hung =) 13 6/6 3/3 3/3 3/3 1/1
leeT. S. R4 6/6 3/3 3/3 3/3 1/1
Average Attendance Rate  F3JHEE 95.5% 100% 100% 100% 100%

*

Mr. Cheng Man Tai resigned as Chairman and Executive Director
with effect from 1 February 2022. Madam Ngok Ming Chu, an
Executive Director, was appointed as the Chairman on 24 March

2022.
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Prior fo Mr. Cheng Man Tai's resignation, there were a tofal of two
Boord meetings held during the Review Period.

In addition, the Chairman met once with the Independent Non-
Executive Directors without the presence of other Directors.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has subscribed an insurance policy with an aim fo
indemnify its Directors and senior executives from any losses, claims,
damages, liabilities and expenses arising from, including but not
limited to, any proceedings brought against them during the
performance of their duties pursuant to their respective service
agreements entered into with the Company.

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers [“Model Code”) [with
certain modifications but on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code [“Securities Dealing Code”) to
regulate the securities dealings by all the Directors and relevant
employees of the Group.

The Company made specific enquiry of all the Directors and
members of the senior management who confirmed that they

complied with the Securities Dealing Code during the Review
Period.

Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to the CG Code, all directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the
board remains informed and relevant.

During the Review Period, all Directors received regular briefings
and updates on the Group's business, operations, internal confrols
and corporate governance matters. Relevant reading materials were
provided to the Direcfors. They also attended courses and seminars
organised by external professional bodies on topics relevant to the
duties and responsibilities of a director during the Review Period. Al
Directors have provided the Company with their respective training
records pursuant fo the CG Code.
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Procedure for Seeking Independent Professional Advice by Directors

There is a written procedure agreed by the Board to enable
Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek and be provided with
independent professional advice in appropriafe circumstances, at
the Company’s expense in order to assist them fo discharge their
duties to the Company.

Functions of the Board

Distinctive Roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

To avoid concentration of power in any one individual, a clear
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer is crucial to the effective running of the Board and
the day-to-day management of the Group's businesses. At present,
the positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company are held by two different Executive Directors, namely
Madam Ngok Ming Chu and Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza respectively.
Their roles and duties are segregated, with a clear division of
responsibilities. Madam Ngok Ming Chu, the Chairman, is to
provide leadership for the Board and ensure that the Board works
effectively while Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Lliza, the Chief Executive Officer,
is answerable fo the Board for the operations of the Group. Madam
Ngok is the mother of Ms. Cheng.

Distinctive Roles of the Board and the Management

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding and
monitoring the operations of the Group, in discharging ifs duties,
certain responsibilities are delegated to:

*  the standing Board committees of the Company namely: the
Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee. Each committee’s constitution,
powers and duties are clearly defined by its terms of reference,
and the committees are accountable to the Board. Ad hoc
Board committees may also be established as required from
fime fo time by the Board;

the Nomination Committee and the

e the Chief Executive Officer, being delegated with the day-to-
doy management of the businesses of the Group, is
accountable to the Board; and

®  the management team of the Group, being delegated with the
responsibilities to deal with daily operational functions, is
answerable to the Executive Directors.
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The Board believes that effective delegation of authority can ensure
that the Board is provided with sufficient and timely information of
the Group's businesses which is, in particular, relevant to the
Group's performance, financial position and operating results, in
order that the Board is able to make an informed assessment of
matters put before the Board for approval. During the Review Period,
each Executive Director had frequent meetings with operational
managers in order fo mainfain an effective feedback system and
enable the Company to react to changes or problems quickly and
effectively.

The functions reserved to the Board are formalized in writing and
include:

®  any matters relating to the formulation of the Company's
strategy and direction;

®  any mafters relating fo financial controls, compliance and risk
management;

® any changes in corporate structure such as the changes
relating to the Company’s capital structure, including share
buy-back or issue of new securities;

®  major appoiniments such as appointments fo the Board, affer
taking info account the recommendations of the Nomination
Committee; the appointment of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer; recommendations to the shareholders on the
appointment or removal of external auditor after taking info
consideration the recommendations of the Audit Committee;
and the appointment or removal of the Group Financial
Controller and the Company Secretary;

®  any matters defermined by the Board to be material, including
dividend policy, significant changes in accounting policies,
material contracts, major financing arrangements and major
investments; and

e the corporate governance functions sef out in the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.
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With respect fo the corporate governance functions, the Board has
reviewed and monitored the Company's corporate governance
policies and practices, the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Board regularly reviews its arrangement for delegation of
authority to ensure that such delegation is appropriate in view of the
Company's prevailing circumstances and that appropriate reporting
systems are in place.

Board Committees

A total of three Board committees, namely the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, have
been formed, each of which is delegated with specific roles and
responsibilities by the Board. All the Board committees follow the
same principles and procedures as those of the Board. The Board
receives the minutes of each commitiee meeting on a regular basis,
including their decisions and recommendations.

Audit Committee
At present, the Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-
Executive Direcfors, namely:

Mr. Lau Siu Ki (Chairman)
Mr. lee Kwan Hung
Prof. lee T. S.

Members of the Audit Committee are appointed by the Board
among the Independent Non-Executive Directors and the committee
consisfs of not less than three members. The Board considers that
each Audit Committee member has broad commercial experience
and together form a suitable mix of expertise in the legal and
accounting fields and that the composition and members of the Audit
Committee comply with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules. The Board, after consultation with the chairman of the
Audit Committee, provides sufficient resources to the Audit
Committee to enable it fo discharge its duties.
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The Audit Committee has the responsibilities and powers sef forth in
its terms of reference. To maintain its independence, the Audit
Comnmittee is required to have at least one meetfing with the external
auditor without the presence of Executive Directors within a financial
year. The function of the committee is to provide assistance fo the
Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities to shareholders,
potential shareholders, the investment community and other
stakeholders relating fo:

e the infegrity of accounts and financial reporting process of the
Company;

®  the assessment of the external auditor’s qualifications and
independence;

e the performance of the Company's infernal audit function and
the performance of the external auditor; and

° the effectiveness of the risk management and infernal control
systems of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website.

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee held three meetings
including one meeting with the external auditor without the presence
of the Executive Directors and the management. The record of
attendance of individual Directors at the committee meetings is sef
out on page 36 of this annual report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the Review Period:

(] review of the annual report and results announcement of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

(i)  review of the external auditor's independence and their report,
with a recommendation to the Board for the re-appointment of
the external auditor by the shareholders of the Company at its
2022 annual general meeting;

(iii)  review of confinuing connected fransactions;
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(iv] review of the interim report and results announcement of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2022, with a
recommendation fo the Board for approval;

[v]  review of quarterly financial reports of the Company prepared
by the Finance Division;

(vi)  consideration of audit and non-audit services provided by the
external auditor;

(vii) review of the effectiveness of the risk management and infermnal
control systfems of the Company and ifs subsidiaries;

(viii) review of periodic reports prepared by the Audit Centre;

(ix) review of the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting, internal audit

and financial reporting functions, and their training
programmes and budget; and

(x)  review of the audit fees payable to the external auditor for the
year ended 31 December 2022, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval.

Auditor's Remuneration
The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration paid/payable
to Ernst & Young, the external auditor of the Company, for the

(iv)
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following services provided during the Review Period: B BTSRRI -
Remuneration
Paid/Payable
Services Rendered FRig (AR 2t FETEE
Audit services BIZIRFS HK$2,668,000 7T
Non-audit services IEEIZIRTS HK$743,000 87T
Total: 4E=t HK$3,411,000% 7T

The Audit Committee has expressed ifs views to the Board that the
level of fees paid/payable to the Company’s external auditor is
reasonable. There has been no major disagreement between the
auditor and the management of the Company during the Review
Period.
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Nomination Committee

At present, the Nomination Committee has four members comprising
one Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely:

Prof. lee T. S. (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza
Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Mr. lee Kwan Hung

The main functions of the Nomination Committee are fo review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, to identify individuals
who are suitably qualified to become Directors, and to assess the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors. After
considering the independence and quadlifications of nominees, the
Nomination Committee makes recommendations to the Board so as
to ensure that all nominations are fair and transparent. The
Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
succession planning of Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer. The Board, after consultation with the
chairman of the Nomination Commitiee, provides sufficient resources
to the Nomination Commitiee to enable it to discharge its duties.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings in 2022. The
record of attendance of individual Directors af the committee meeting

is sef out on page 36 of this annual report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Nomination Committee during the Review Period:

()  assessment of the independence of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors;

li)  recommendation to the Board on the re-election of Directors;

liii)  review of the existing sfructure, size and composition of the
Board:;

(iv)] recommendation to the Board on the appointment of the
Chairman of the Company;

(v  recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of
Executive Directors of the Company; and

[vi) recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company.
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In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following maijor criteria set out in the Company's director nomination
policy had been considered by the Nomination Commitiee:

e character and integrity;

*  qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience relevant to the Company’s business
and strategy, and diversity aspects under the board diversity
policy of the Company;

®  requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines sef out in the Listing Rules;

e willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committeels)
of the Company; and

e the overall ability to exercise good judgement and to provide
valuable insights and diverse perspective fo the Board.

The Nomination Committee, upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of new director and the biographical information of the
candidate, had evaluated such candidate based on the criteria as
set out above to defermine whether such candidate was qualified for
directorship and made recommendation to the Board to appoint the
candidate for directorship.

With respect to the re-election of Directors at the annual general
meeting, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the overall
contribution and services to the Company of the retiring Directors
and the level of participation and performance on the Board to
defermine whether the retiring Directors would continue to meet the
criferia as set out above and made recommendation to the Board in
respect of the proposed re-election of Directors at the general
meeting. The relevant information of the retiring Directors together
with the recommendation of the Board would then be disclosed in
the circular accompanying the notice of the general meeting and
sent to shareholders in accordance with the Llisting Rules and
applicable laws and regulations.
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As a good corporate governance practice, Nomination Committee
member (being also the Independent Non-Executive Director)
abstained from assessing his own independence and re-
appointment.

The ferms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available
on the Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

Remuneration Committee

At present, the Remuneration Committee has four members
comprising one Executive Director and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely:

Mr. lee Kwan Hung (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza

Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Prof. lee T. S.

The main functions of the Remuneration Committee are to assist the
Board in establishing a formal and transparent procedure for setting
policy on Direcfors’ and senior management’s remuneration and to
make recommendation to the Board on the packages (which include
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments) of
individual Executive Directors and senior management [i.e. the
model described in code provision E.1.2(c|(ii] of the CG Code was
adopted) as well as on the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors.
The Board, after consultation with the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, provides sufficient resources to the Remuneration
Comnmittee to enable it fo discharge its duties.

In recommending the remuneration of the Directors, the Remuneration
Committee makes reference to companies of comparable business or
scale, and the nature and volume of work in order fo compensate the
Directors reasonably for their fime and efforts spent. The Remuneration
Committee regularly reviews and makes recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of Direcfors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings in 2022. The
record of attendance of individual Directors at the committee
meetings is sef out on page 36 of this annual report.
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Remuneration Committee during the Review Period:

(i

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

recommendation to the Board on the payment of bonuses to
the senior management staff in Mainland Ching;

recommendation to the Board on the payment of discrefionary
bonuses fo the Executive Directors and staff in respect of the
final results of the Company for the year ended 31 December

2021,

review of the new service agreements between the Company
and Executive Directors of the Company, with advice and a
recommendation fo the Board for approval;

review of the consuliancy agreement between the Company and
the former Chairman of the Company, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

review of the letters of re-appointment of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval; and

recommendation fo the Board on the vesting of share options
under the Share Option Scheme to Directors and selected
employees.

As a good corporate governance practice, Remuneration Committee
member (being also the Independent Non-Executive Director] had
not involved in reviewing his own director’s fees.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

Pursuant to code provision E.

1.5 of the CG Code, details of the

annual remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2022 is as follows:
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Defails of the remuneration of each director for the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.
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Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements with the assistance of the accounting team in accordance
with stafutory requirements and appropriate financial reporting
standards for each financial period, which shall give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and of the
consolidated financial performance and cash flows for such financial
period. During the Review Period, the Board was not aware of any
material uncertainties relating fo events or conditions that might cast
significant doubt upon the Company's ability fo continue in business.
Accordingly, the Board has prepared the financial statements of the
Group on a going concern basis.

All the Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about the
auditor's reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Croup is sef out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 69 fo
77 of this annual report.

The Company announces ifs interim and annual results as soon as
reasonably practicable affer the end of the relevant financial period
and the financial year respectively pursuant to the requirements of
the Listing Rules, disclosing all such information as would enable the
Company's shareholders to assess the performance, financial
position and prospects of the Company.

Dividend Policy

The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to
the shareholders of the Company, subject fo the articles of association
of the Company and all applicable laws and regulations. In
recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meefing its working capital requirements
and future growth as well as its shareholder value. The Company has
no fixed dividend pay-out ratio. The Board considers that, in general,
the amount of dividends to be declared will depend on the Group's
financial results, cash position, capital requirements, business
conditions and sfrategies, and other facfors as may be considered
relevant at such time by the Board.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for establishing and
maintaining appropriate risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. Risk
management and infernal confrol systems are designed fo manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure fo achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The Group has established
comprehensive policies and procedures in areas of operational,
financial and risk controls.

The Group has an internal audit function. The Audit Centre of the
Group conducts reviews of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems. It carries out the financial,
operational, project management and information security control
reviews according to the yearly plan reviewed and endorsed by the
Audit Committee. In addition to the agreed schedule of work, the
Audit Centre conducts other reviews and work as and when
required. The management, in coordination with the Audit Centre,
assessed the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans,
and monitor the risk management progress. Findings and
recommendations are reported regularly to members of the Audit
Committee and the Board.

During the Review Period, the management has confirmed to the
Board and the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and the Board had
conducted a review of its risk management and internal control
systems of the Group under code provision D.2.1 and considered
them effective and adequate without the occurrence of any
significant failure.

The Audit Centre of the Group continued to provide independent
assurance fo the Board and management on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for
the Group during the Review Period. The Assistant Direcfor of Audit
Centre reports functionally to the Audit Committee and administratively
fo the Chief Executive Officer.

The Board undertakes to periodically review the risk management

and internal control systems of the Group to ensure their effectiveness
and efficiency.
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The Board reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and their fraining programmes and
budget during the Review Period and considered that the Group
had adequate staff resources with the competence, qualifications
and experience necessary for the effective performance of its
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

A whistleblowing policy has been formulated with a view to
providing a mechanism for employees of the Group to raise
concerns about the possible improprieties in financial reporting,
infernal control or other matters. Internal procedures are put in place
whereby employees of the Group can report possible risks and
inside information identified in daily operation to the Board.
Furthermore, the Company has developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guide to the Company's Directors, officers,
senior management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries.

Various policies and procedures including, among others, the Code
of Ethics and Conduct, Gifts and Entertainment Policy, Anti-Bribery
Agreement are in place fo safeguard against corruption and bribery.
The Group has established reporting channels that are open and
available for employees and business partners of the Group fo report
any suspected corruption and bribery. The Audit Centre is responsible
for investigating the reported incidents and taking appropriate
measures. The Group continues fo carry out anfi-corruption and anfi-
bribery activities to cultivate a culture of integrity, and actively
organises anti-corruption fraining and inspections fo ensure the
effectiveness of anticorruption and anti-bribery measures.

Company Secretary

Ms. So Ka Man of Tricor Services Limited, external service provider,
has been engaged by the Company as its Company Secrefary. The
primary contact person at the Company, whom Ms. So can confact,
is Ms. Law Yuk Ying, the Group Financial Controller of the
Company.

During the Review Period, Ms. So has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional fraining to update her skills and knowledge.
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Investor Relations and Communication
with Shareholders

The Company has in place a shareholders’ communication policy to
promote effective communication with shareholders and to solicit
and understand the views of its stakeholders and the investment
community. The Board has reviewed the implementation of the
policy during the year and considered that the policy is effective
with the measures disclosed below.

The Company has an ongoing dialogue with shareholders through
various communication channels as follows:

®  publication of notices, announcements, circulars, interim
reports, annual reports and press releases on the Company’s
website

®  publication of key corporate governance policies on the
Company's website

®  holding of annual general meeting and other general meetings
of the Company

The Company has also engaged a professional public relations
consultancy company to organise various investor relations programs
(including regular briefing meetings with the media and analysts)
aiming at increasing the transparency of the Company, enhancing
communication with shareholders and investors, increasing their
understanding of and confidence in the Group's businesses and
promoting market recognition of and support to the Company.

During the Review Period, the Company has not made any changes
fo ifs articles of association. An upfo-date version of the articles of
association of the Company is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. Shareholders may refer to the
articles of association for further details of the rights of shareholders.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company by Shareholders
In accordance with Article 64 of the articles of association of the
Company, an extraordinary general meeting can be convened on
the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors
or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Directors for the
fransaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries by shareholders to be put to the Board can be sent in
writing to the Company’s Company Secretarial Department at the
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and
registration, change of name or address, loss of share certificates or
dividend warrants, the Company's registered shareholders can
confact the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited. For other enquires or requests, the
Company's investors can contact iPR Ogilvy Limited, the Company's
investor relations consultancy company. Detfailed contact information
is available on the Company’s website at www.embrygroup.com.

Procedures for Making Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

If a shareholder of the Company wishes fo nominate a person to
stand for election as a Director, the following documents must be
validly sent to the Company's principal place of business in Hong
Kong or the Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, namely (i) his/her notice of infention to
propose a resolution at the general meeting; and [ii) a notice
executed by the nominated candidate of the candidate’s willingness
fo be appointed. The period for lodgment of the nofices of (i) and {ii)
above will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting and end no lafer than seven days
prior fo the date of such meeting.

To put forward proposals other than the above af a general meeting,
shareholders of the Company should submit a writtlen nofice of those
proposals with their defailed contact information to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the shareholders concerned
at general meetings varies according fo the nature of the proposal.
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Report of the Directors
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The directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the

"Group") for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are sef ouf in note 37 to
the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
Group's financial position at that dafe are set out in the financial
statements on pages /8 to 180.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited consolidated financial statements is set out below.
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Results e
Year ended 31 December
HE+—-B=+—HILEE
2021 2020 2019 2018
T ZZ°DE ZZ-NE ZF)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FABT FAET
REVENUE Y 1,652,408 1,650,483 2,266,867 2,451,874
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE P& AR,
TAX (E548) (16,383) 20,519 125,275 227,076
INCOME TAX FRiSTRIESR
CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (B%) (11,102) (23,343) (44,953) (75,911)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR FEHR 7 (5518)
THE YEAR (27,485) (2,824 80,322 151,165
Attributable to: MUFALRE
Owners of the Company KATVEEB A (27,485) (2,824) 80,322 151,165
Assets and Liabilities EEKRARE
As at 31 December
w+=-BA=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018
T ZZTIRE ZZ-NE Z3)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FABT FABT
TOTAL ASSETS BEHE 3,304,777 3,429,445 3,504,496 3,290,251
TOTAL UABILITIES &{E4EE (788,504) (941,056 (1,155,221) (958,532)

2,516,273 2,488,389 2,349,275 2,331,719

The above summary does not form part of the audited financial

statements.

LR BN ERYBREN—ED -
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Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the year
are sef out in note 28 fo the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company fo offer new shares on a proata basis
fo existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2022, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act,
Chapter 22 (law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$09,132,000. The amount of
HK$909,132,000, includes the Company’s share premium and
contributed surplus of HK$767,760,000 in aggregate at 31
December 2022, which may be distributed provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
fo be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable confributions fofalling
HK$2,558,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
and purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
less than 30% of the total sales and purchases for the year,
respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital] had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Man Tai [resigned on 1 February 2022)*
Madam Ngok Ming Chu (Chairman)*

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Lliza (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen

Ms. Lu Qun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Llau Siu Ki

Mr. lee Kwan Hung

Prof. lee T. S.

*  Mr. Cheng Man Tai resigned as chairman and executive director with

effect from 1 February 2022. Madam Ngok Ming Chu, an executive
director, was appointed as the chairman on 24 March 2022.

In accordance with article 108 of the Company's articles of
association, Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen, Mr. lau Siu Ki and Mr. lee
Kwan Hung will refire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting

("AGM").

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. lau Siu Ki, Mr. lee Kwan Hung and Prof. lee T. S.
pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited [the "Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), and as at the date of this report, sfill
considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical defails of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 26 to 29 of the
annual report.

o
RENRBEFAREDFATDEEMT :

HITES

BRREE (CE__F_F—HFT)*
ERRYR £ (Z/E) *

BEIEZ L (TTHARH)

BE2FkE

BERUL

BIFENITES
BRI E
FIgIE S E
FREHHE

Y BHREEERELARBDNTESEREER
> BT "F-A—RAEREN -HTEF
ERGZ TN _E__F=A_+WAEEE
BERBER -

REBERABEBMEIZMERE 108 1F > BEEKT
£ BIBESRERFIRIAERNERERRE
FRE(RRABFEKRE) LRESR  BRSE
EBERBEEE-

FABCEEIEETE  FHBEERFTRX
THRREEBMEXZFMARAT (THH
PR) 5855 EARA) (TEMARAL) 5 3.1 3R H
B SN FEERERDE » USBARENEARS
BEDEEILAL

R A LS R R
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company's arficles of association, subject to the
applicable laws, every director of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which he/she may incur or sustain by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/her office.
The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against direcfors of the Company.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Madam Ngok Ming Chu, Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza, Mr. Cheng
Chuen Chuen and Ms. Lu Qun, have each enfered info a service
agreement with the Company for a ferm of two years commencing
on 25 March 2022, 1 December 2021, 22 September 2021 and
2 February 2023, respectively.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has been appointed
for a term of two years commencing on 25 November 2022.

Under the service agreement, affer each complefe year of service,
the remunerafion payable to each of the executive directors may,
subject to the discretion of the Company’s board of directors, be
increased by not more than 10% and the executive directors are
entitled to a discretionary management bonus provided that the total
amount of bonuses payable fo all the executive directors for that
year shall not exceed 8% of the audited consolidated profit after tax
of the Group.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re<election at the
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is nof
deferminable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Emolument Policy and Directors’
Remuneration

The Group’s emolument policy is formulated based on the
performance of individual employees and is reviewed regularly.
Subiject to the Group's profitability, the Group may also provide
discretionary bonuses fo its employees as an incentive for their
confribution to the Group. The primary goal of the emolument policy
with regard to the remuneration packages of the Group's executive
directors is to enable the Group fo refain and mofivate executive
directors by linking their compensation with performance as
measured against corporate objectives achieved.

The principal elements of the Group's remuneration packages
include basic salaries, discretionary bonuses and housing benefits.

The direcfors’ fees are subject fo shareholders” approval af general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save for transactions as disclosed in note 13 to the financial
statements, no director nor a connected entity of a director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or confracts of significance fo the business of the
Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

B R MR
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares

T HE om)

and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive in the share capital and underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFQO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

(the “Model Code”), were as follows:

long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

R AT B AR B B B A B
o i B 25 M 8

R ZECF+ZR=+—H > EFRITHR
HNARBHEEREE (ERRESFRAE
15651 (M5B 5 R HAE IR B 1) S5 XVER) AR 4 Ko AE R
B0 ¥R B AR A BRI 5 R E 1R 5
BI2HFEFENTCMAN R ARE » R
BEEHETAEFETESFXZHRETH
(MREFETR ) @RI A B Fe Bt 32 PR8I 2t S sk
BT

RAERBEBRINTE !

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
Capacity and Shares/equity shares/equity issued share
Name of director nature of interest derivatives derivatives held capital
FRiEIR(D IR (LB ATEHIT
EENE S REEEE iR RETETR TETIR%E REHESLE
Madam Ngok Ming Chu Inferest of controlled Ordinary shares (Nofe 1) 143,041,031 33.86
ERG L T corporations
RGN BT ZiE (et 1)
Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 2,978,901 0.71
Em#EBA Bk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 2) 1,300,000 0.31
BaEBE A BRI (et 2)
Inferest of spouse Ordinary shares (Nofe 3 3,628,220 0.86
[ i@ (st 3)
Inferest of spouse Share options (Nofe 3 1,430,000 0.34

FofBtgam

FERRTE (M5t 3)
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s AT B AR R Iy B M B It
Interests and Short Positions in Shares e RE 2R IR E (1)

and Underlying Shares (continved)

RAEATE@BERNETE | (&

Llong positions in ordinary shares of the Company: (continued)

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
Capacity and Shares/equity shares/equity issued share
Name of director nature of interest derivatives derivatives held capital
FRisiRMn BetE  (HEARBET
EENR B kiEmitE R BRETETR fTEIA%E RAFNESLE
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 60,087,577 14.22
PEELL BmEBA Eidhk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 2) 1,220,000 0.29
BEEAA fERtE (W7 2)
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 28,094,709 6.65
BEEFTE BmEBA EiEhk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 2) 295,000 0.07
BEEAA fERtE (W7 2)
Ms. Lu Qun Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 1,024,057 0.24
¥ 3o BmEBA EiEhk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 2) 665,000 0.16
BEEAA fERtE (W7 2)
Mr. Lau Siu Ki Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 768,000 0.18
FEESE BB EiEhk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 2) 100,000 0.02
BEEAA fERtE (W7 2)
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s AT B AR R Iy B M B It
Interests and Short Positions in Shares IR IR (&)
and Underlying Shares (continved)

long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: [continued) RAERBEBRINGE | (&

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
Capacity and Shares/equity shares/equity issued share
Name of director nature of interest derivatives derivatives held capital
FRisRRen MetE  EFATBHT
EENR B kiEmitE R BRETETR fTEIA%E RAFNESLE
Mr. lee Kwan Hung Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 487,000 0.12
&S5 BmEBA Eidhk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 2) 100,000 0.02
BB A fERtE (W7 2)
Prof. lee T.S. Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 604,000 0.14
FREHE BmEBA EiEhk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 2) 100,000 0.02
BB A fERtE (W7 2)
Notes: et

2 {7 BHarmonious World Limited (THarmonious
World) 8 ° Harmonious World 73 Bl B8 & BB
R LR RAEEER 70.89% % 29.11%
T o

1. These shares are held by Harmonious World Limited ("Harmonious 1.
World"). Harmonious World is owned as to 70.89% by Madam
Ngok Ming Chu and as to 29.11% by Mr. Cheng Man Tai.

W ENESETERER _F_Z2FHA
A\ BERMEvEER TS (TRERESTE)L) PR
ERBREMR RS RETHRNHE - B
RSt BISF IR F5 R R MY 55 SO EE ©

2. These represent the number of shares which will be allotted and issved 2.
fo the respective directors upon the exercise of the share options
granted fo each of them under the share option scheme adopted on
28 May 2020 [the "Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share
Option Scheme are disclosed in note 30 fo the financial statements.

3. Madam Ngok Ming Chu is deemed to be interested in the shares 3. TRIFFESFREAERBISEXVER - EBABRUL AR
and share options personally held by her spouse, Mr. Cheng Man »EAHEBRHRAEEARENRERE
Tai, pursuant to Part XV of the SFO. fete 2z #Eam o
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continved)

R T 0 B A B st
RE #®)

ﬁ

=S
=
ﬁé&)‘d
%%

long positions in ordinary shares of an associated corporation: POREGEE S @R A -
Percentage of
the associated
Name of Relationship Capacity and corporation’s
associated with the Number nature of issued share
Name of director corporation Company of shares interest capital
ARG S
¥ YN 55R e8Ik
ERNER 1REEE R TR BIRA{Z Liab k4= e HESLE
Madam Ngok Ming Chu Harmonious Controlling  40.09 shares of Beneficial 70.89
World shareholder US$1 each owner
EBRER X ZERRRERE  40.09kEk Bm#ER A
RS
E8licav)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required fo
be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Inferest and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above
and in the section “Share Option Scheme” below, at no time during
the year were rights fo acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted fo any of the
directors or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party fo any arrangement to enable the directors fo
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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Share Option Scheme

Defails of the Share Option Scheme and the share option movements
during the year are disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements.

As at the date of this report, the fotal number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme was 42,241,663 shares,
representing approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

The number of share options available for grant under the mandate
limit of the Share Option Scheme as af 1 January 2022 and 31
December 2022 were 23,516,663 and 24,151,663 respectively.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2022, the following interests of 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company (other than the interests of the
directors of the Company as disclosed above| were recorded in the

register of inferests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

W ¢ HE T )
PEAR A S B3 B R E R AR R B M T
R 3E 0 o

RAREHER > BB EIIR T AIHETHR
PHBEA 42,241,663 > (AR AT BETR
ZREY 10% °

IREB AR RS BIRIREIREE > 1P2022F 181
A& 20224128 31 BRI HIREMVERESHE
PRA23,516,663 24,151,663 °

B o B At N\ A 4y B i
B 2 1 60

ATECTHFFTA=+—H  UTFAL(EX
FIRBEZ A RBEFEmFIN REAT S H#
TTRAEFER 5% A L BEAR AT RIFEEZS
FHERE R B 336157 EMNE sCMApED :
RAERBEBRIVER !

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

Capacity and Shares/equity shares/equity issued share

Name nature of interest derivatives derivatives held capital

R n Bt FRisR&{R BRiE AR BET

%3 B kESEEE IR fTETA%E RAEHE R

Harmonious World Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 143,041,031 33.86
EmER A TIER
[Note 1)
Bzt 1)

Sinowide Investments Limited Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 30,000,000 7.10
EmEA A ZIBRR

Value China Fund Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 21,475,000 5.08
EmEEA Bk

Mr. Cheng Man Tai Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 3,628,220 0.86
EHELE EmEREA ZiE

Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 2) 1,430,000 0.34
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other

m )

3 B B At N\ A 4y B i

Persons’ Interests in Shares and 3R Jie 1y W B 2t (4
Underlying Shares (continved)
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s
Capacity and Shares/equity shares/equity issued share
Name nature of interest derivatives derivatives held capital
[0 g Frishatn /R EERTFEHT
H"E SinkEmttE fT£IR fTEIA%AE RAFNTSLE
Interest of spouse  Ordinary shares (Nofe 3) 146,019,932 34.57
FofBfm BBk (a2 3)
Interest of spouse  Share options (Nofe 3) 1,300,000 0.31
FofBfm FERGHE (M52 3)
Ms. Wong Oi Fan Interest of spouse Ordinary shares 28,094,709 6.65
FESut FofBfm EiEk
[Note 4)
(Hist4)
Interest of spouse Share options 295,000 0.07
Fo B ERE
[Note 4)
(st 4)
Ms. Cheng Tsz Kwan Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 22,366,661 5.29
WERBY L BmEAA EiEk
[Note 5)
(Htst 5)
Beneficial owner Share options 185,000 0.04
BEmEBA Bl
[Note 6)
(Hsz )
Mr. Cheng Ka Hei Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 22,064,732 5.22
BREXE BREBA EiEk
[Note 7)
(Kt 7)
Ms. Mei Zhen Interest of spouse Ordinary shares 22,064,732 5.22
i) Reamn FofdfEm =Bk
[Note 8)
(Hist 8)
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares (continved)

Noftes:

1. The relationship between Harmonious World, Madam Ngok Ming
Chu and Mr. Cheng Man Tai is disclosed under the section “Directors’
and Chief Executive's Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares” above.

2. These represent the number of shares which will be allotted and issued
fo Mr. Cheng Man Tai upon the exercise of the share options granted
to him under the Share Option Scheme.

3. Mr. Cheng Man Tai is deemed fo be interested in the shares and
share options personally held or controlled by his spouse, Madam
Ngok Ming Chu, pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

4. Ms. Wong Oi Fan is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen, an
executive director of the Company. She is deemed to be inferested in

the shares and share options personally held by her spouse pursuant
fo Part XV of the SFO.

5. Ms. Cheng Tsz Kwan is the granddaughter of Mr. Cheng Man Tai
and Madam Ngok Ming Chu.

6. These represent the number of shares which will be allotted and issued
tfo Ms. Cheng Tsz Kwan upon the exercise of the share options
granted to her under the Share Option Scheme.

7. Mr. Cheng Ka Hei is the grandson of Mr. Cheng Man Tai and
Madam Ngok Ming Chu.

8. Ms. Mei Zhen is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Ka Hei. She is deemed to
be inferested in the shares personally held by her spouse pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person,
other than the directors of the Company, whose inferests are set out
in the secfion “Directors” and Chief Executive's Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had registered
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant fo secfion 336
of the SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company's fofal number of issued shares were held by the public as
at the date of this report.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected
fransactions, details of which are disclosed in compliance with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(1)

(2)

Purchase of furniture and decoration services

The services agreements which were entered into between the
Company, certain subsidiaries of the Group and the related
companies in relation to the purchase of furniture and services
of decoration for counters and shops as well as different types
of moulds (the “Services”) in 2017 and 2018 expired on 31
December 2020. The Company and certain subsidiaries of
the Group therefore entered info a new services agreement
with the related companies on 14 December 2020 (the
"2020 Agreement’). Under the 2020 Agreement, the Group
agreed to purchase the Services from the related companies
1 January 2021. The
related companies are controlled by an executive director of
the Company and his close family members. Further details

were disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 14
December 2020 and 29 December 2020.

for a period of three years starting from

The continuing connected fransactions contemplated under the
above services agreement would only be subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements and
are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under the Listing Rules.

Lease of warehouse

A subsidiary of the Company has been leasing a warehouse
in Hong Kong from an executive director of the Company. The
continuing connected fransaction under the tenancy agreement
constitutes a de minimis fransaction under the Listing Rules and
is exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules.
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

(3)  Consultancy fee

A substantial shareholder who is the spouse of an executive
director of the Company has been engaged as a consultant of
the Company for a term of one year with effect from 1
February 2022. The continuing connected transaction under
the consultancy agreement also constitutes a de minimis
fransaction under the Listing Rules and is exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Details of the above continuing connected fransactions of the Group
are set out in note 13(a) to the financial statements.

Pursuant fo Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive directors have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions disclosed in (1) above and confirmed that the continuing
connected fransactions have been entered info:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i)  according fo the agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the inferests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The total amount in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed in (1) above during the year under review has not
exceeded the annual cap for the fransactions.

In respect of the continuing connected fransactions disclosed above,
the directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules during the year under review.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

The Company has also received a lefter from Ernst & Young, the
Company's auditor, fo report on the Group's confinuing connecfed
fransactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to
Practice Note 740 (Revised) Auditor’s letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst &
Young have issued their unmodified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed in (1) above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules confirming that nothing has come fo their attention that
causes them fo believe the continuing connected fransactions:

() have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(i)  were not enfered info, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

i) have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual cap disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 14 December

2020.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 is provided in the sections “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman’s
Statement” and "Management Discussion and Analysis” sef out on
page 3, pages 8 to 11, and pages 13 to 21 respectively of this
Annual Report. For environmental policies and performance,
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations, and a description
of relationships with key stakeholders, please refer to the
"Environmental, Social and Governance Report” which will be
available on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing limited together with this Annual Report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Auditor B Bk

Emst & Young retire and a resolution for the re-appointment as ~ ZXK Gt EHEFIRNEERREBFAE LR

auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM. T @LRIEERBRZENEEZKEIE
BPR AR B IZELED o

On behalf of the Board RREFE

Ngok Ming Chu EERER

Chairman TE

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023 BB T2 =F=A"+=H
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Independent Auditor’s Report

M 57 A% SR R

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Embry Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Embry
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 78 to 180, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as af
31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

M) 7 R SR A o)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed HFIREH N
Key audit matter the key audit matter RASEE S+ EIF IR E s+ HIA
Inventory provision = "‘ﬁﬂﬁ
As at 31 December 2022, the We tested the accuracy of the RIE__F+_-8 #HMEE =2£E
Group had net inventories of ageing analysis of the Group's =+—H> E£EEN FENFHERED
HK$458,256,000, representing  inventories. We recalculated the 377 E&#4458,256,000 o FfiiRiE B

48% and 15% of the Group's
current assets and total assets,
respectively. The estimation of the
inventory provision requires
significant management
judgement, which includes the
recoverability of the cost of
inventories, the nature and
condition of inventories, the
marketability of finished goods
and the future usage of raw
materials.

Related disclosures about the
accounting estimation and the
details of inventory provision are

included in notes 3, @ and 20 to

the financial statements.

Embry Holdings Limited Z2%(

BSERBRA

inventory provision under the
Group's policy and assessed the
assumptions being used in the
inventory provision calculation
by reviewing the basis, the
rationale and the consistency of
the inventory provision policy,
considering the hisforical and
current inventory ageing
information and taking into
account the historical sales
pattern of aged inventories.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Key audit matters (continved)

I3 9 9% w1 3 JH ()

How our audit addressed BEFIBvE N
Key audit matter the key audit matter FASREsT I RIERRE B
Impairment assessment of HthE ErRETE
Other Asset
As at 31 December 2022, the With regard to management’s RIZEZZHF+ZR MRREEEYHHM
Group had Other Asset (as defined  impairment assessment of Other =+—H> E£EN BEMNRENMGH:
in note 19 fo the financial Asset, we reviewed the objectivity, HMEE(THZEWE RASBEEE
statements) of HK$402,697,000,  independence and expertise of the ~ 19) #402,697,0007#  Fr B FA A9 9N 2B (& (&

representing 18% and 14% of the
Group's net assets and tofal
assets, respectively. Under the
annual impairment festing, the
Group conducted the impairment
assessment by comparing the net
carrying amount of Other Asset
with ifs fair value as determined
based on the valuation performed
by external valuers and a method
of valuation which involved
certain assumptions, including
gross unif rate per square metre.
The assumptions used in the
valuation have involved significant
management ]udgemem.

Related disclosures about the
accounting esfimation and the
details of impairment assessment of
Other Asset are included in notes 3
and 19 to the financial statements.

external valuers engoged by
management and assessed the
related data and assumptions
being adopted, including
unobservable inputs and other
estimates, by comparing key
valuation parameters including the
gross unit rate per square mefre
with market information. We
involved our valuation specidlists fo
assist us in reviewing the valuation
methodologies and key valuation
parameters on the fair value
estimation of Other Asset. We also
assessed the disclosures relating to
the assumptions used in determining
the fair value of Other Assef in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Key audit matters (continved)

I3 9 9% w1 3 JH ()

How our audit addressed HBFIREH N
Key audit matter the key audit matter Pt HIA RIZRAR Tt BIR
Impairment assessment of right-of- EREEEREEEER
use assets and property, plant and BTG
equipment
As at 31 December 2022, the We evaluated management's RZEZZHF+ZH BfMERE &&
Group had rightof-use assets of impairment assessment and the =+—HB> EEEN NETHEREM

HK$145,181,000, representing
7% and 5% of the Group's non-
current assets and fotal assets,
respectively, and property, plant
and equipment of
HK$895,058,000, representing
44% and 30% of the Group's
non-current assets and fotal assets,
respectively. Management
performed impairment assessments
on the Group's rightof-use assets
and property, plant and equipment

where an indicator of impairment of

these assefs existed. During the
year, an impairment of rightofuse

assets of HK$ 18,796,000 was

recognised to reduce the carrying

amounts of certain rightof-use assets

to their recoverable amounts.

identification of CGUs or
groups of CGUs based on the
Group's accounting policies
and our understanding of the
Croup's business.

In evaluating management’s
impairment assessment, we also
assessed the valuation
methodologies adopted by
management in determining of
recoverable amounts of the
assets, CGUs or groups of
CGUs.

With regard to management’s
value in use calculations, we
evaluated and tested the key
assumptions used in the
calculations:

— for budgeted sales and
expenses, by comparing
the Group's budgets of the
relevant CGUs with the
historical results; and

— for discount rate, by
making reference to

market data and
comparable companies in
the industry.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Key audit matters (continved)

I3 9 9% w1 3 JH ()

How our audit addressed ZEMEHME
Key audit matter the key audit matter RSt HIE EIEMRETEE
Impairment assessment of right-of- EREEEREIEEER
use assets and property, plant and Bi¥dk (&
equipment (continued)
When performing the impairment  In relation tfo the fair value less  FRETREREE > &8 RBANEENAFER

fesf, management defermined the

recoverable amounts of the relevant

assets, cash-generating unifs
("CGUs") or groups of CGUs as at
31 December 2022 based on the
higher of value in use calculations
using the discounted cash flow
method and fair value less costs of
disposal. When using value in use
calculations, significant
management judgement and
estimates were involved in the
assessments of the recoverable
amounts of CGUs or groups of
CGUs, for example budgeted
sales, budgefed expenses and
discount rate. The outcome was
sensitive fo the expected future
market conditions and the actual
performance of the CGUs or

groups of CGUs. The fair value less

costs of disposal of the relevant
assefs was defermined based on a
valuation performed by an
independent professional external
valuer, of which cerfain key

assumptions used, such as the gross

unit rate per square metre, involved
significant management judgement.

Related disclosures about the
accounting estimation and the
details of impairment assessments
are included in notes 3, 9, 16 and
18 1o the financial statements.

costs of disposal of the assets,
we reviewed the objectivity,
independence and expertise of
the external valuer engaged by
management and assessed the
related data and assumptions
being adopted, by comparing
key valuation parameters
including the gross unit rate per
square metre with market
information.

We involved our internal
valuation specialists to assist us
in evaluating the
appropriateness of the
methodologies and the key
assumptions used in the
valuations.

We also assessed the
disclosures of the impairment
assessment of right-of-use assets
included in note 18 to the
financial statements.
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Other information included in the
Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal confrol as the directors defermine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
confinve as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related fo going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alfernative but to do so.

The direcfors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee

in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are fo obfain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial stafements as a whole are free from material
missfatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Qur report is made solely fo you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. VWe do not assume responsibility
fowards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always defect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
fo influence the economic decisions of users faken on the basis of
these consolidated financial stafements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e I|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, infentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s infernal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

M) 7 R SR A o)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability fo continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report fo the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up fo the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group fo cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying fransactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group fo express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

M) 7 R SR A o)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

We communicate with the Audit Commitiee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in exiremely rare circumstances, we
defermine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lai VWan Fung, Jacky.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27 /F, One Taikoo Place
979 Kings Road, Quarry Bay
Hong Kong

23 March 2023
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Consolidated Income Statement

5 o WA R

Year ended 31 December 2022 #E_—F__&F+_F=+—HILFE

2021
=&
Notes HK$'000
i3 FET
REVENUE Wi 5 1,652,408
Cost of sales THE A (446,706)
Cross profit EF 1,205,702
Other income and gains, net HWA B Wz > 58 6 75,797
Selling and distribution expenses HE R DR (1,061,332
Adminisfrative expenses THRX (188,481)
Impairment of rightof-use assets EREEERE 18(al (25,777)
Impairment of financial assefs, net TREERE 55 (979)
Other expenses Htpaxx 7 (11,102)
Finance costs =N 8 (10,2171)
LOSS BEFORE TAX (S350 ] (16,383)
Income tax credit/[expense) PR8ISR (BY) 12 (11,102
LOSS FOR THE YEAR BATEE B
ATTRIBUTABLE TO FEESE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (27,485)
LOSS PER SHARE TATEE AL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ShRESIE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 15
— Basic (HK cents) — B2 (GB) [6.51)
— Diluted (HK cents) — 858 (B (6.57)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Ay A T W A R

Year ended 31 December 2022 #E_—F_—_&F+_F=+—HILFE

2021
-
HK$'000
FET
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FERE (27,485)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ (EXPENSE) Hit2Em A~ (BIx)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) that may R EZEABI I fEEHHiEERER
be reclassified to the income statement NEMZERBA ) :
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of FEBINSEFIEEZ
foreign operations bE SR = &R 61,760
Other comprehensive income/(expense| REERESAEHEE
that will not be reclassified 1o the income BENEMIEA (%) -
stafement in subsequent periods:
Revaluation surplus BhAER 13,991
Deferred tax debited to asset revaluation REESEHEEHIRZ
reserve (nofe 2. EERRIB (M52 27) (3,498)
Net other comprehensive income that will not RERBENEEFHETIELE
be reclassified to the income statement HNHEMEmEWASEE
in subsequent periods 10,493
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ (EXPENSE) FEHMM2EWKA (%) »
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX Np#RIE 72,253
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) EATEEAEBLEE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 2EBA(B%R) g8
OF THE COMPANY 44,768
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

&5 o IR Ol 3=

31 December 2022 —E_—&#+_"A=+—H

2021
=&
Notes HK$'000
fiat FET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME ~ R KRB 16 1,034,948
Investment properties KREYE 17 520,563
Rightof-use assets (EEREEE 18(a) 174,863
Other asset Hith&EE 19 437,073
Deferred tax assets BRI IBEE = 27 72,107
Deposits and other receivables e R EMER RIS 22 20,782
Total non-current assets JERENEEEE 2,260,336

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories e 20 526,358
Trade receivables FEW & ZBRFR 21 51,943
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FE{ITRIE ~ & R EMEKRIE 22 76,438
Tax recoverable B dEE e 11,066
Cash and cash equivalents B RIESZ%EY) 23 378,636
Total current assets MENEEMAE 1,044,441
CURRENT LIABILITIES REaE

Trade and bills payable (T B SRR T R i% 24 33,976
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5T RIBTTE™R 25 57,887
Lease liabilities HEaR 18(b) 47,468
Other payables and accruals HpE S RIE R BT IE 26 197,221
Total current liabilities mEaEEE 336,552
NET CURRENT ASSETS FEEERE /707,889
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EEEREEIGE 2,968,225

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERB AR
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTRIBTTER 25 288,595
Lease liabilities HEaE 18(b) 31,397
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEa(E 27 127,513
Other payables H eI RIE 26 4,447
Total non-current liabilities IERBaEEE 451,952
Net assets BSE3E 2,516,273
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

&0 W IR O 3% ()

31 December 2022 —_E_—"&#+_"A=+—H

2021
=&
Notes HK$'000
itz FET
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the  YNSIE RPN LT
Company
Share capifal N 28 4,224
Reserves (B2 29 2,512,049
Total equity rarET 2,516,273

Ngok Ming Chu
EERER

Director

EF
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Cheng Pik Ho Liza
BEE
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

22 N\ DL o2h
%k A BE 25 52

—

) &

Year ended 31 December 2022 H#ZE -2 __F+_HA=+—HIEE
Attributable to owners of the Company
FATEE AL
Reserves
ikt
Enterprise
expansion
and
Share Asset statutory Share  Exchange
Share  premium Contributed revaluation  reserve opfion fluctuation  Goodwill  Retained Total Total
copifll ~ account  surplus reserve funds  reserve  reserve  reserve profits  reserves equity
0] BEEfE PRURR ERKE
BEx  EER  R4ER s AEhRE BRERE fh HEMRE ROEY GEE 4R
Notes  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
lif3 FEr TEr FEr  TEn TEr  FEn  TEr  FEr  TEn  TET FEn
[note 29) [note 29) [note 29)
(Hiz£29) (Hiz£29) (Hiz£29)
A1 January 2022 RZE__%#-A-H
Loss for the year EEEHR
Revaluation surplus E4 16
Deferred tox debited o asset REEBHEENRZ
revaluation reserve EERIE 2
Exchange differences reloted o TEIEINEBFEE 2
foreign operations ERER
Total comprehensive income,/ ERZERN/ (%)
[expense for the year k]
Share opfions lapsed BRELY
Equitysefled share option Pri etk e dre
arangements 30
Transfer fo refained profifs BAREBER
At 31 December 2022 RIB-—fF
+ZA=+-H
At T January 2021 RZZZ-F—A-AH 4224 386512 122610 22,361 189,836 12 51,564 (3,168) 1,714,438 2,484,165 2,488,389
Loss for the year FEFE = = = = = = = - (27485 (27485  (27,48))
Revaluation surplus ELl 16 - - - 13991 - - - - - 13991 13,991
Deferred tax debited fo asset REESHENRZ
revaluation reserve RIERIE 2 - - - (3,498 - - - - - (3,498 (3,498
Exchange differences reloted o~ $TEBINEBRIES Y
foreign operations ERER = = = - - - 61760 - - 61760 61760
Tolal comprehensive income/ R ERA/ ()
[expense] for the year k) - - - 10,493 - - 61,760 - (27485 44768 44,768
2020 final dividend declored BRERA-B-ZF
ond paid KRS 14 = = = = = = = - (10,560]  (10,560]  (10,560]
2021 inferim dividend b 2 14 = = = = = = = = (8,448) (8,448) (8,448)
Equitysetfled share option REGHRRERH
arrongements 30 - - - - - 2,124 - - - 2,124 2,124
Transfer from refained profifs BERDHF - - - - 2,406 - - - (2,400) - -
At 31 December 2021 RIBZ-&
+ZB=1+-H 4224 386512 122610 32,854 192,242 2,136 113,324 (3,168] 1,665,539 2,512,049 2,516,273
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

R

=

=F

R

Year ended 31 December 2022 #E_—F_—_&F+_F=+—HILFE

2021
s
Notes HK$'000
Kzt FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEFZIRE TS
Loss before tax FRIRRIETE (16,383
Adjustments for: FHEE
Finance costs GE= %N 8 10,211
Bank interest income RITH B WA 6 (4,889
Interest accretion on non-current receivables JEENHAFER R IERIMI B8N 6 (1,991)
Covid-19-related rent concessions EHHEARME Covid-19-
from lessors BIEEENEEER % (818)
Equity-settled share option expense Pt BRI R 2
Depreciation of property, plant EEEEZHITE
and equipment ? 80,306
Depreciation of rightof-use assets EREEEITE Q 56,861
Gain on termination of leases LIFAEZ W % (357)
loss,/(gain] on disposal /write-off of items of HE MHEDE - BEKR
property, plant and equipment, net RBBEZEE
(Uzm) > 34%8 Q (156)
Wirite-off of deposits mE 2 el Q 424
Provision/ (write-back /write-off of [REFERE,
provision) for obsolete inventories, net (B[], M) > P58 Q 59,184
Impairment of trade receivables, net FENEE SAEFURIE > 7328 Q Q79
Impairment of other receivables HAFE R IERE ? -
Impairment of rightofuse assets EREBEERE % 25,777
Changes in fair value of investment properties & B2 AT {EEH) 6 (3,072)
208,200
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERLDEm) (6,952)
Decrease in trade receivables FEUL B ZBRFR D 14,138
Decrease in prepayments, TAMRIE ~ BE M E ML
deposits and other receivables RIE R 4,188
Increase/(decrease) in frade and bills payables  FE{T B2 7 BR =N R FE (S =45
@i, CRel) (1,615)
Decrease in other payables and accruals HAMFE(TRRIE R fE ST R IR R (7,798)
Cash generated from operations KEFTSIRE 210,161
Overseas taxes refunded/(paid) B[O (BY) /89MR 18 (38,794)
Net cash flows from operating activities MR R SR ASE LR 171,367
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

4o Bl 4B i B AR ()

Year ended 31 December 2022 #E_—F__&F+_F=+—HILFE

2021
s
Notes HK$'000
Mtz FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES &8z RERE
Interest received U= 4,889
Purchases of items of property, BEYE  BEAREEE
plant and equipment 16 (11,230)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYIX BEKRFHEE
property, plant and equipment ZFPRiSRIA 227
Increase in rightof-use assets fERESAEEM (533)
Increase in non-pledged time deposits with REARRIRAZIN =
original maturity period over three months Z BRI E HATERUE N -
Net cash flows used in investing activities BEEH IR 35 (6,647)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RiE;ZEIZIREFE
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEN (117,934)
Principal portion of lease payments HENRZEE (78,782
Dividends paid BARE 14 (19,008
Inferest paid BAFE (10,211)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEH RS R B (225,935)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND RERRELEEBY2
CASH EQUIVALENTS sgnn, GrL) #eR (61,215)
Cash and cash equivalents af FY2RERIREEEY
beginning of year 425,149
Effect of foreign exchange rafe changes, net EREH 2 E > 3R 14,702
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZRERRE EEY
AT END OF YEAR 378,636
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERBRE EE/MEERZ A
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank bolances & IR TAE R 23 166,511
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity FEEARFRZIHAE A/
of less than three months when acquired =B8R Z IR EHFR 23 212,125
Non-pledged time deposit with original maturity A EEABRREIEEE A L7
period over three months when acquired =88 2 EIRIRE BER 23 -
Cash and Cash equivalents as sfafed RE MBI R Z
in the consolidated statement of HEKRIREZEY
financial position 378,636
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity 7288 A B R EHA H 4 %7
period over three months when acquired =88 Z IR E B 23 -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ReRERaRmity
in the consolidated statement of cash flows B RIESZEY) 378,636
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Notes to Financial Statements

$4 5 it % B ik

31 December 2022 —_E_—"&#+_"A=+—H

1. Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 29 August 2006
under the Companies Act, Chapter 22 (law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
registered office address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
the Cayman Islands and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at 7th Floor, Wyler Centre I, 200 Tai Lin
Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 37 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities during the year.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ["HKASs”) and
Inferpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000)
except when otherwise indicafed.

2l E R

KRABRIZEERFENBZ+H N HREGH
EHEF2ERTE(—NAN—FEH
= RIFEREE]) RHEEHEFEMMKIL
AEBRRBRAT o KRB MFEE
# 41k 25 Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the
Cayman Islands » TIAR BB E B & =1
AT BMAZBARELE 2005 EmH
D_HR/ 18 o

FRBNEBXEBRAREER - BRHINE
AEMEBXEFAFBHNMBRRWEE
37 c FRAEENTIEXEHMELREKX

28 o

2.1 25| 5 e

ZEMGRERBEEBEAMAE ((HE
SEMAE ) BN EBYHREER
(TEBMBREER ) (BEFMAEEBY
HEER  FEGER ((HBG5HE
) KRE2k) « BB ARG RUIKES
ANENEBIRBEIRTE - ZFMHRRIREE
SEMAERE - KRB ERE A FES
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

7% e 2 B 5 ()

31 December 2022 —E_—&#+_"A=+—H

Embry Holdings Limited Z#175

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continved)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entfity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable retums from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly or
indirectly, less than a maijority of the voting or similar rights of
an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are affributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All infra-group
assefs and liabiliies, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating fo transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

ZERBRAE / Annual Report 3R 2022
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

7% e 2 B 5 ()

31 December 2022 —_E_—"&#+_"A=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continved) 2.1 B 5|5 4 (48)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes fo one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity fransaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises [i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling inferest and {iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment refained and {iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in the consolidated income statement. The
Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to the consolidated
income statement or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Concepiual

maEE (@)
HEBRIEN R Lt =IREF R EE
h—IENZEAE > AAEETEGES
MAERRERR - B ADEAEES
BYEE) (LEREESIE) - RARRES(E
RmR 5 °

WAL B R EM B AT RERIRE > TR
BR@mRE LRSI NELATNEE (8
EEE) RERE - (| EFHERERAR
EE R (i) st A\ S RFTERZER ; I
FEST ()| WAL BRI R TEE ~ (i) EIRE
RENATFEBERI|EAHLEENR
BREUE TR - ZEEF AN EMES WA
SN LEBOERFER  BEAEEE
RHERREENRBFEXRNERERE
EMNBERG W@ RAIREEF o

2.2 & 5k 8RB K o i

REBEMAFTERY BERERE TERMU
TRETEBMBREER -

BEMBRSENE IR HoERNEL

Framework EEH)
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: EEGHENF 165 WE BERRE —
Proceeds before Intended Use HMERT B EBFAIH
FriE#E
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of BEGENE /R BEEH — BT
Fulfilling a Contract BEET BRIBIRLZ
Annual Improvements fo Amendments to HKFRS 1, BB EREER EBIHREED
HKFRSs 2018-2020 HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples “E-/\EE 515 HBUH
accompanying HKFRS 16, ZEEFE REEAZ O
and HKAS 41 FENE GBS EMBRE
28 165888
BlFREBEG
HERIE A 57
[
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

7% e 2 B 5 ()

31 December 2022 —E_—&#+_"A=+—H

88

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

2.2 Gt BURZ B & P& @)

BRANRETEBNEE]EBMFRSZER]
ZHERFERLAT

(@) Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the (o) BETFHERSENE IHKZEFTUR
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation “E-N\FRREMZHEREH
of Financial Statements with a reference to the EHER (TS HER ) 2RI E Ak
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the AR R 2T B #RER Z ER Z IR
"Conceptual Framework”) issued in June 2018 without wo MERTmEEARES ZE
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments SITREE BB E RS 3THEK
also add to HKFRS 3 an exception fo its recognition ERESEZHIERUEEEENE
principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual B2 AR ER D 2 SRR BIE N A
Framework to defermine what constitutes an asset or a T—EBIIMENR o ZBIIMEIERR -
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and AERBETERE 37 KHEE (E
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of R RE2REEEE) —2BE2]
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred FHENZBBEATREEMS
separately rather than assumed in a business MzEEBEADHELMIENER
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to BHREE BEAESBMBRE
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRICHnt 21 respectively instead of the ZR|FIFEREDFBEETAEY
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments STEERISE 37 SR E B (B R 7R
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition HREEEY) —2RBE215%MmIE
at the acquisition date. The Group has applied the BESHELR o LS - BRIMEST B B K
amendments prospectively to business combinations that REBEELARERWEBRERZ
occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As there were no ftf o REBRBHNRN B - _F—
business combinations during the year, the amendments A—HRzBEF ZEZBSHARE
did not have any impact on the financial position and MR EZ FEE] BN ERNILLR
performance of the Group. BEERAEHBSH > EHILZFET

WENAEER Y MHERRRRIRE
FRAERIE o
(b) Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from b) BEZHENF 6 EIEILE

deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for if o be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of
those items as defermined by HKAS 2 Invenfories, in
profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
refrospectively fo items of property, plant and equipment
made available for use on or affer 1 January 2021.
Since there was no sale of items produced prior to the
property, plant and equipment being available for use,
the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continved)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable fo the Group are described below: (confinued)

(c)

(d]

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the confract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
confract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative costs
do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded
unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to contfracts for which it has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and
no onerous contracts were identified. Therefore, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendment that is applicable to the Group are as
follows:

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether the
ferms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those
paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. The
Group has applied the amendment prospectively
from 1 January 2022. As there was no
modification or exchange of the Group's financial
liabilities during the year, the amendment did not
have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

2.2 Gt BURZ B & P& @)

BRANRETEBNEES]EBMHRSZER]
ZMERFERRT @ (&)
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EEBEEEMEs BT
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BHNBEZERZRAEERITZS
N2 IBEMA (BN BEZEE B A
B M ETZ N EZERZ i
A e (BN DB BIT & 4R FR
B - BMERKREBER ZITER
TUREHNEBREBRAE) o —fi
RITHERITIEEZREASHNERE
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BT AR E BB FHPTEE ©
rEBEHN _ZE-__F—H—H
WABITEMBEEERZ SRR
HIRNZEEET ) BEMEEHZ
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(d) BEMBERESER_FT—NFE_
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2.3 O A A AH I R A 200 7 vk Y
e 4
A B U S SRR AU T B
(B RO RACE T BB TS 4R

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements. EHER o
Amendments fo HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an ERVHEREENE 10%N REZLAHE, TS
HKAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture® EADHERE 28 5% BELENEENE

BEET (CB——%) BHE

Amendments fo HKFRS 16 lease liability in a Sale and leaseback? EEMBRSREAE 0%  EROENHERR

i3]

HKFRS 17
Amendments fo HKFRS 17

Amendment fo HKFRS 17

Amendments fo HKAS 1
Amendments fo HKAS 1

Amendments fo HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments fo HKAS 8
Amendments fo HKAS 12

Insurance Contracts'

Insurance Contracts'

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS @ — Comparative Information®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current (the “2020 Amendments")? 4
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

(the "2022 Amendments”)?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates'
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities

BEMBRSENE 175

BEMBREEAF 175
BYEET

BAVBRSERNSE 175
ByEE]

BEGSHERE 1 501
BAGHERE | FAVET

FAGSEIE 1 %R
BRYBRSENEH
RES 2500185]

ERGHEAF 8 RVER]

BAGSHERE 1258985

RG]
BN

WP RRE BB REEA
57 EREEIBRE
ZA)F 05 — LEERH

REEDERREAIRE
([ZBZ T ) 24

MEZEN DGR
((ZE- &)

BRI RE

B 2R
HE-TFELIAER

arising from a Single Transaction’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

No mandatory effective date yet defermined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date
of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a
consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Confains a Repayment on Demand Clause was
revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments fo HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39
rather than HKFRS @ for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to
the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it
on initial application of HKFRS 17
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong 2.3 A A 15 ¥ R A Ly 7 i

Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or confribution of
assefs between an invesfor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
confribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor's inferest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the
complefion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that o
sellerlessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a
sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the sellerlessee does
not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the
right of use if retains. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied refrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
enfered info after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16
li.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted.

ek HE I 8)

TR EREER A E RN R
EREE— B o

BERMBREENE 10K RERGE
AIE 285k (T2 ——F) NIESTHRE B
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BHMEANRNGE X BNEELE
HIRAFREN R —EM - ZFETER
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5 > 5 P B A BN o 50 S 1R 12 LU R Bt
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AR RIBEERBm P - ZFEF]
R AR - BB ESEAEER
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M RGIEMHRARNHBHE R REGE
TENETRETREREZNEARE
RE © 228 » ZFEST AN IRESEA ©
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabiliies as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current, in particular the determination over
whether an entity has a right to defer seftlement of the liabilities
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Classification
of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will
exercise its right to defer setflement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
sefflement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the 2022
Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which
an entity must comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current. In
addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional disclosures
by an entity that classifies liabilities arising from loan
arrangements as non-current when it has a right to defer
setflement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months after the
reporting period. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied refrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An
entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to
apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity's financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to
HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the
guidance provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting
the accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the
amendments.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong 2.3 A A 15 ¥ R A Ly 7 i

Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or dfter the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected fo
have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statfements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies
fo transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available] and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or affer 1 January
2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or other component of equity as appropriate at
that date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied
prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application, but is not yet in a position fo state whether these
new and revised HKFRSs would have any significant impact
on ifs results of operations and financial position.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assefs transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group fo the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
confrol of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders fo a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assefs. All other components of non-
confrolling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability fo create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition dafe. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity inferest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
the income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
income statement. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is nof remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

2.4 LR G BRBR @)

Policies (continved)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling inferests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in the income
statement as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment fest of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
festing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
imespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is defermined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit refained.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Fair Vu|Ue measurement

The Group measures ifs investment properties at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid fo transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market partficipants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction fo sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset fakes info
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation fechniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.4 FEFFERME @

Policies (continved)

Fair value measurement (confinued)

All assefs and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant fo the fair value measurement as a
whole:

level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) af the
end of each reporting period.

DEEESE#E

FIESN A REABIIRENEER
BREDBDERHAFEBEFEEENEBE
ANREBERBBABBRUTATEBESR
Ak i

F— — EREREENEENZE
MHIZBIIRE RERE)

Fh — EREATEESEMSE
EANIER (ERUBER)
RIEBWASBENLES A

F= — ERHQATEESEMSE
BERNFIHRREEHA
IREET A

PIRE B MR ER AR REINEE
REBRME  FEEEBENRSKREHRE
a0 (ERH QAT EES SEREMm
EEEARNRBEERAYER BREESSH
EFRFHREE o

Annual Report %R 2022 / Embry Holdings Limited Z#175 & H RAF]

97



98

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt %% e 7% P BE (@)

31 December 2022 —E_—&#+_"A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continved)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)
(i)
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i

i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Embry Holdings Limited %2

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one enfity is an associafe or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entfity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a postemployment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity); and
the entity, or any member of a group of which it is

a partf, provides key management personnel
services fo the Group or fo the parent of the Group.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
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Policies (continved)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is defermined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assefs or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit fo which the asset belongs. In festing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset [e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise,
to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds ifs recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-fax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific o the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
assefs.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
esfimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to defermine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been defermined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited fo the income statement in the
period in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.4 FEFFERME @

Policies (continved)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than consfruction in
progress, are sfafted af cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
affributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its infended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
mainfenance, is normally charged to the income statement in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criferia are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required fo be replaced at infervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assefs with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to
the income statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to the income statement to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the assef revaluation reserve realised in
respect of previous valuations is transferred fo refained profits
as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straightine basis to write off
the cost of each itfem of property, plant and equipment fo its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2% to 3.3%

leasehold improvements 4.5% to 20%
Plant and machinery 10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10% to 20%
20% to 25%

Motor vehicles

Embry Holdings Limited Z#175 R ARAE / Annual Report ¥R 2022

M ~ BERREURITE

PREZ IR % ~ BB RRBIZAE
R EHTERERIBEBEALNK - —BY)
F BErRBZRABEBEEBRER
B EERHEFERREME(FRERR
PA=E;-357%: N

BIEVE BERRERABFRELEZ
fisx (AR FRE) —RRIEEHREBW
mRNF o W EREEIIRE » —IBEXER
RZAXUEBERARNEERAETES
EFIBR © H4% « BMERREZEEZHD
ATREA > AEEEDBZFE D AER
BE > BRHIERFERKITE -

#  (EEEET RLUBRSAES 8IS H
2 EMR S R o Hig > BERERT
St AU - LSRRI AR IR o
W BT ER » BEBEEEERRLE
(EEEER PR WARBRF > (EARE
B B8 -

ITERREYE « BERKREZ(EERE
RERUBESETE » DR A EER]
BREME - FULME > FARAZEE2FERY
T

1BF 2%-3.3%

EEYIEEE 4.5%20%
o5 Be 28 10%-20%
Fih ~ HERMAERE  10%-20%
! 20%-25%



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

7% e 2 B 5 ()

31 December 2022 —_E_—"&#+_"A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
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Policies (continved)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least af
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
refirement recognised in the income statement in the year the
assef is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and equipment
under consfruction, which is sfated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct cosfs
of construction during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held o
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost,
including fransaction cosfs. Subsequent fo initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions af the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement in
the year of the refirement or disposal.
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Embry Holdings Limited Z#175

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Other asset

Other asset is the right fo receive the new properties under a
relocation arrangement, further details of which are given in
note 19 to the financial statements. Such assef, being the
consideration fo be received upon disposal of the original
properties under the relocation arrangement, is initially
recognised at its fair value. Subsequent to the initial
recognition, other asset is stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the
fransaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise fo cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
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Policies (continved)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (confinued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assefs in order fo
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assefs, or both. Financial assefs classified
and measured af amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assefs are
recognised on the frade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits o purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the markefplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assefs depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assefs at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised |i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has fransferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b] the Group has
neither transferred nor refained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has fransferred ifs rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has enfered into a passthrough arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
fransferred nor refained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues fo recognise the fransferred asset o the extent of the
Croup's confinuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred assef is measured af the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Policies (continved)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECls are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contfract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective inferest
rafe. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral fo the contfractual terms.

General approach

ECls are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since inifial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months {a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information. The
Group considers that there has been a significant increase in
credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
fo be in default when infernal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
confractual cash flows.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial assefs at amortised cost is subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECls except for trade
receivables and contract assefs which apply the simplified
approach as detfailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal fo 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not creditimpaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifefime ECLs

Stoge 3 — Financial assefs that are creditimpaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated creditimpaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
fo lifetime ECls

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not frack
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific fo the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as ifs
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating EClLs with policies as described above.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

2.4 LR G BRBR @)

Policies (continved)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially af fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liahilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interestbearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised costf, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective inferest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cosfs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
confracts that require a payment fo be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee confract is recognised
inifially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for fransaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent fo initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: {i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy
as sef out in “Impairment of financial assefs”; and (i) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is freated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right o offsef the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to seftle on a net basis, or to
realise the assefs and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value after making due allowances for obsolefe or slow-moving
items. Cost is defermined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on the estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continved)

Leases

The Group assesses at confract inception whether a confract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right fo control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for shortterm leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right o use the underlying assets.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Rightof-use assefs are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of rightof-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
cosfs incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straightline basis over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assefs as follows:

Lleasehold land
Buildings

45 to 50 years
2to 11 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using
the estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continved)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rafe, and amounts expected
fo be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group
and payments of pendalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option fo
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rafe are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
friggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses ifs incremental borrowing rate af the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretfion of inferest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change fo future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option fo purchase the underlying
asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

2.4 LR G BRBR @)

Policies (continved)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Shortterm leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the shortterm lease recognition
exemption fo its shortterm leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do
nof contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets fo
leases of office equipment and laptop computers that are
considered to be of low value.

When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis.

lease payments on shortterm leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification] each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

leases in which the Group does not fransfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a confract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straightline basis over the lease terms and is included in
other income in the income statement due fo ifs operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotfiating and arranging
an operating lease are added fo the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
other income in the period in which they are earned.

leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible info known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and af banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature fo cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assefs that
necessarily fake a substantial period of time to get ready for
their infended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assefs. The capifalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assefs are substantially ready for their infended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing cosfs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an enfity incurs in connection with the borrowing of

funds.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
seffle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to seftle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the income statement.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

2.4 LR G BRBR @)

Policies (continved)

Income fax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating fo items recognised oufside the income sfatement is
recognised either in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid fo the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking info consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profif nor
taxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible femporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
any unused fax losses. Deferred tax assefs are recognised fo
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused fax losses can
be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a fransaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

®  in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised fo the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the tfemporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced fo the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised fo the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is seffled, based on tax rafes (and tax
laws| that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
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Policies (continved)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current fox assefs and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assefs and deferred tax liabilities relate fo income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to setile current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or fo realise the assets
and setile the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be sefiled or recovered.

Dividend income derived from the Company’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China is subject to a withholding tax under the
prevailing tax rules and regulations of the People’s Republic of

China ["PRC").

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers af
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects fo be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods
or services fo the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncerfainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the confract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the cusfomer at confract inception. When the
confract confains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the fransaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised af the point in fime
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods.

Other income

Rental income is recognised on a fime proportion basis over
the lease ferms. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, fo the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
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Policies (continved)

Contract liabilities

A confract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier] from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfer control of the related
goods or services fo the customer).

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects fo develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
infangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
fo measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the expenditure
incurred in the construction cost of infrastructure projects, are
recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense ifem, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to an
asset, the fair value is deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released fo the income statement by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“Equity-settled Transactions”).

The cost of Equity-settled Transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value af the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is defermined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in nofe 30 fo the financial statements.

The cost of Equity-Settled Transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for Equity-Sefled Transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit fo the income statement for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
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Policies (continved)

Share-hased payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are freated as vesting
imespective of whether the market or nonwvesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
condifions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-setiled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the fofal fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial fo the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-seffled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
freated as if they were a modification of the original award,
as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of these employees’ basic salaries
and are charged fo the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
confributed info the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentages of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
cenfral pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
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Policies (continved)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company'’s functional currency. Each entfity in the
Group defermines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial stafements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entfities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on setlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monefary items that are measured in terms of hisforical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates af the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
franslated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of
a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item |i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or the income sfatement is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or the income statement, respectively).

In determining the exchange rafe on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating fo an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group defermines the fransaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of cerfain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are franslated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their income
statements are franslated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates that approximate fo those prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the income stafement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are franslated into
Hong Kong dollars af the exchange rates ruling af the dates of
the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are franslated info
Hong Kong dollars af the weighted average exchange rafes
for the year.

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management fo make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements

and Estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered info commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting to
substantially all the fair value of the commercial property, that
it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased
out and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Classification between investment properfies and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to eamn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
fo determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Income fax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences as at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements 3. FE&FHH B & A5 @)

and Estimates (continved)

Judgements (continued)

Income tax (confinued)

As explained in note 27 to the financial statements,
withholding tax is levied on dividends to be distributed by
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008. Deferred tax is
provided, at the applicable withholding tax rate, on the
undistributed earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries that
would be distributed to their respective holding companies
outside Mainland China in the foreseeable future.

The Group's investment properties at fair value in Mainland
China are all held to eamn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation and they are considered to be held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Accordingly, deferred tax
on the Group's investment properties at fair value is measured
fo reflect the tax consequences of recovering the carrying
amounts of the investment properties through use.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Fair value estimation of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(a) independent valuations;

(b)  current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location (or subject to
different leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences;
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements

and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value estimation of invesiment properties (continued)

(c)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that
occurred af those prices; and

(d) discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the ferms of
any existing lease and other contracts, and (where
possible) from external evidence such as current market
rates for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
markef assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of cash flows.

Further defails, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note
17 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix fo calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rafes are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments that have similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region and customer type.
The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forwardHooking
information. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-ooking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECls is sensitive fo changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The
Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group's frade receivables is disclosed in nofe
21 to the financial statements.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements

and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Inventory provision

The Group manufactures and sells goods and is subject to
changing consumer demands and fashion trends. As a result, if
is necessary to consider the recoverability of the cost of
inventories and the associated provision required. When
caleulating the inventory provision, management considers the
nature and condition of inventories, as well as applying
assumptions around anticipated marketability of finished goods
and the future usage of raw materials.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily defermine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate
("IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of a similar value fo the rightof-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when
no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that
do not enter info financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for
example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required
tfo make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Impairment of non-financial assefs (other than Other Asset)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all nonfinancial assets (including the rightof-use
assefs) at the end of each reporting period. Non-inancial
assets are fested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carmying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of ifs
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
esfimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rafe in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continved)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment assessment of Other Asset (as defined in note 19)

As disclosed in note 19, Other Asset is the right fo receive the
new properties and is stated at cost less any impairment
losses. Under the annual impairment testing, an impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of ifs
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The Group
conducted the impairment assessment by comparing the nef
carrying amount of Other Asset with its fair value as
determined based on the valuation performed by independent
professionally qualified valuers and a method of valuation
which involved certain assumptions, including the gross unit
rafe per square metre. The assumptions used in the valuation
have involved significant management judgement.

Segment Information

The Group's primary operating segment is the manufacture
and sale of ladies’ brassieres, panties, swimwear, sleepwear
and others. Since this is the only operating segment of the
Group, no further analysis thereof is presented. In defermining
the Group's geographical information, the revenue information
is based on the locations of the customers, and the total non-
current asset information, other than deferred tax assets, is
based on the locations of the assets.

Mainland China
HEARE

2021
—ET—&
HK$'000
FET

Revenue from external HREFZ W

customers 1,602,751
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,081,799
Capital expenditure incurred FRNERHZ

during the year

10,754

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, as no
revenue from sales to any customer of the Group has
individually accounted for over 10% of the Group's total
revenue, no information about major customers is presented

under HKFRS 8.
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Hong Kong
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Hth&E ERREE (ERRMIEE9)

W 19IKEE - HthEER R YE
BORER - % R AR R E R 1R T AR ©
EETFERERNSAR  BEVNREELE
BUNREAEBEHETKREIEE BIERA
FEAHENERERABERNETHNRS
Z) R EFEERE ~ERRBLLRA
thEENREFERARBEBIEXEGER
HEMETNEEEEN R TEURS R
ETRR (BREESTHRHREME) Bl
B AETRE G » EPMBRKRT KR
EXEEEHIE -

g1 ¥ & B
FAEEZTELENBELTHE RN
8~ KR, BETRNREMZ RIERIHE o B
RIERETERZMHE—KENE > WIES
SE—F 20 - REAEEZEER
> W BRI E P ARfE A B - 48
IERBEE (BLERBEEEMRIN) ERHZE
EFTE B ERE o

Others Total
Hith st

2021 2021 2021
—EC—f s B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET

45,168

06,430

1

1,652,408
2,188,229

476 11,230

BE_Z_—GFR-ZF-_"_Ft+°-H
=+ —HLEFE > ARFEETEEAR

B 2 S5 & W (85 (G A~ S B AR U 10% L
£ MIRRBEEBYHREERSE 857
ERTEZFHER

SERBRAT
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5. Revenue 5. Wik
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA DT ¢
2021
BT —F
HK$'000
FET
Revenue from contracts with customers REEE SIS
Sale of goods HESS 1,652,408
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEREHNNNE
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information ) SDEkEER
2021
BT —F
HK$'000
FET
Business activities ¥i%EE
Concessionary counters HEZEE 1,051,230
Retfail sfores EEEH 174,163
Internet and wholesale 48 i e Rt 422,526
Original design manufacturer ("ODM) R stEEm 4,489
1,652,408
Brands mmhE
Embry Form ZHIFS 819,193
Fandecie NS 341,477
Others Hith 487,249
ODM products ODME 4,489
1,652,408
Products Em
Lingerie TERIR 1,425,878
Sleepwear BETX 159,834
Swimwear KT 47 174
ODM products ODMEf 4,489
Other products HthER 15,033
1,652,408
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5. Revenue (continved)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amount of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that was
included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

W% (@)
RARE AN (2)

(i)

DEWEER (&)
TRETARSHAREBHOBAE
B AEERSHINGNaRT -

2021
TET—F
HK$'000
FBT

Revenue recognised that was included in

confract liabilities af the beginning of FriesBrI A
the reporting period:
Sale of goods HESm

AR ESESNAaRT

22,011

Performance obligations
Information about the Group's performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The Group sells goods directly to retail customers via
refail stores, concessionary counters and internet. The
performance obligation is satisfied when the product is
transferred to the customers upon delivery of goods.
Payment of the fransaction price is due immediately
when the customers purchase the goods. The payment is
usually setiled in cash or using credit cards.

The Group also sells goods to wholesalers. The
performance obligation is satisfied when confrol of the
products has been fransferred, being when the products
are delivered to the wholesalers and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the wholesaler's acceptance
of the products. The payment is generally due within one
month, extending up to three months for major customers,
from delivery, except for certain wholesalers, where
payment in advance is normally required.

(ii)

BHEE
BRAEBEENSENEREL
T s

HEHm

FEEBBETEE  KErEERE
BMEEZENTERRHEEY - B
NEFERTERFRFBIRESE - B
EFREERmE BUMURSE
B o AR —MUREHERF
o

FEETARLEBHLESR  BY
B R E m B ERI AR 1S 2
58 BNEMRM FHEB AN ER
BTEHAETERLEBHHERN
B IRMBEES—MER  £2
FERIERERZ=ER (BEMZE
BIESH) - EE TR EBEIRI > —
ARFEEIZAI(IRR ©
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5. Revenue (continved)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i) Performance obligations (continued)
As a practical expedient, the tfransaction prices allocated
to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) are not disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements because all the remaining
performance obligations in relation fo the sale of goods
are a part of contracts that have an original expected
duration of one year or less.

Wtk ()

REEE N &)

(i) BHEEGE)
EARITHREZ ) DEFHT
BHEE GRBITHBOFEBIT)
RSB KT R RN S P
B hHARESNEERNFAE
BTRASERRATEIARA—
FEHUTHEL—ES o

6. Other Income and Gains, Net 6. Hi A KW - FH
2021
-
HK$'000
TET
Other income Hthg A
Subsidy income* FRBAUA * 37,586
Gross rental income from investment KREYELSESHEN
property operating leases: HE WA KRR :
Other lease payments, including HMBEIE » BEEE
fixed payments I8 18,221
Variable lease payments that do not NGO NN S EIw RS
depend on an index or a rate RIETEENIA 691
Bank interest income SRATH B A 4,889
Inerest accrefion on non-current receivables — FERNHEARE U TRIERIF S 12 1N 1,991
Gain on termination of leases KRIEREZ W 361
Others HAth 4,241
67,980
Gains/(losses), net s ($8%K) » B
Foreign exchange differences, net ERER > B8 4,745
Changes in fair value of investment BREMEATEEE (W 17)
properties (nofe 1/) 3,072
7,817
75,797

There are no untfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to this income.
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7.

Other Expenses 7. AR %
2021
=&
HK$'000
FET
Charitable donation =R 8,514
loss/(gain) on disposal /writeoff of items of  HE MEHMIZE  BE K&
property, plant and equipment, net BEZBER (W) » 358 (156)
Write-off of deposits 4 7 W 424
Employee termination benefits ETHRTZES 2,248
Others Hih 72
11,102
Finance Costs 8. W& MWMA
2021
=&
HK$'000
FET
Interest on bank loans RITEEF 2 6,193
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEFE 4,018
10,211
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9. Loss Before Tax

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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9. BBt Al 1R
AEEZRRABASIR, GEA) :

Cost of inventories sold*

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of rightofuse assets

Gain on termination of leases

lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities (note 18(c))

Covid-19-related rent concessions from lessors

Employee benefit expenses (excluding
directors’ and chief executive's
remuneration — note 10):

BEFERE*

BEEEEITE

fEREEEZE

RIEEEZ W

et AHE&EIEERE
(F&E 18(c))

E LB ARMHE Covid19%15
HENEER %

EEENRX (TEREES

RATEUBEFN — AaE 10) ¢

Woages and salaries TEKF=E

Retirement benefit scheme contributions* * * IBRIREM EH B <>

Employee termination benefits BT HRES

Equity-seftled share option expense et BRI R
Auditor's remuneration TZEEMEN &

Advertising and counter decoration expenses

Provision/ (write-back /write-off of provision)
for obsolete inventories, net

Write-off of deposits

Impairment of trade receivables, ne

Impairment of other receivables* *

Impairment of rightof-use assets

Research and development expenditure

loss/(gain) on disposal /write-off of items of
property, plant and equipment, net

Foreign exchange differences, net

Gross and net rental income

Changes in fair value of investment properties

Bank interest income

T**

Interest accretion on non-current receivables

B S R B ERRE

PREEFE#RME /(B M) -
/EFEE

FEUN B S ARFURIE > /HEE**

HhFEWRIE R E * *

EREEERE

IR B

HE MEYZE ~ BB MEE
HEZ B8 (W) » FEE

ER;EE /?%E

TR U AARRE SR8

KEME AT EES

IRITH S U A

FERBNFEWFRIBRIF 2
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2021
s
HK$'000
FAET

446,706
80,306
56,861

(357)

306,823

(818)

481,466
53,472
2,248
1,533

538,719

2,538
107,873

59,184
424
Q/9

25,777
1,751

(156)
(4,745)
(18,912)
(3,072)
(4,889)
(1,991)
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9. Loss Before Tax (continued)

*

* *

* Kk Kk

The cost of inventories sold for the year included
HK$66,788,000 (2021: HK$197,791,000) relating to staff
costs, depreciation of manufacturing facilities and the
provision/(write-back/write-off of provision) for obsolete
inventories, net, which is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed above for each type of expenses.

Impairment of trade receivables, net, and impairment of other
receivables are included in “Impairment of financial assets, net”
on the face of the consolidated income statement.

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the
Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of
contributions.

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the vyear,
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Llisting of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(al, (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

%MM&E@)

* Kk

* kA

EEFEMABIESTHE. HiERE
WERRKREFERE ~(FB - M)
FFEE# 66,788,000 (ZE_—4F !
197,791,000787T) B RIMEEEIF BECA
LB R ZAAMARARE S T ©

FEW B ZRR B E - P8R - KA MK
KB BEE G A MRS Wt 20 [ E R EE
BE 2 JFEE A e

Bl iR E [ 2 e AT B X R R B 1]
FRKFHIER IR ©

R AT AR

$E$F§%H§ZA*%FEEBE"T (TEG3ZPA 1)
se EMRR) (TEMRA)

BRAEF

f5155383(1)(a), (b), (c)R(f)fF » MURAE] (3K

BEENm

S B FRBISE 2 BPIREEA T ¢

2021
B
HK$'000
FET

Fees WE
Other emoluments: HANE -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e
Bonuses™® TE4L *

Equity-settled share option expense
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

R EBRER
RGBT St EIHR

R R BYIH =

1,074

12,642
308
591

54

14,669

Executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus
payments which are defermined as a percentage of net profit of
the Group on a quarterly basis.
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10.Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration (confinved)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, cerfain directors
were granted share options, in respect of their services fo the
Croup, under the share option scheme of the Company, further
details of which are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements. The fair value of the share options granted in
2020, which has been recognised in the income statement
over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial statements is
included in the above directors’ and chief executive's
remuneration disclosures.

2022

Salaries,

allowances

and benefits

Fees in kind
i

R

wE  BAE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET F#ET

Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Cheng Man Tai* BYREL
Madam Ngok Ming Chu ER%L T
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza** BRERLH
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen BEREE
Ms. Lu Qun BByt

Independent nonexecufive BUFRHTEE

directors:
Mr. Lau Siv Ki ZIBELSE
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung RS
Prof. lee T. S. FREHR
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R BB R EN A EE (ENEBEN
W RN IRIRHBHREE > M
A BHRENEBEETE L XIREN
BEERITHABEFA o

k- et -2
Equity-  Retirement
seffled benefit
share option scheme Total

Bonuses expenses  contributions  remuneration

RigEE  BMER
ftA BRERx  SEHER b
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FEn FEn FEn
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10.Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration (continved)

10. 3 F L AT BUREH W (@)

2021 —E_—F
Salaries, Equity-  Refirement
allowances seffled benefit
and benefits share option scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses expenses  contiibufions  remuneration
ol
EHR g RIREH
e BE e BRERx AR R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEm TE7 TE7 TE7 FEm &7
Execulive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Cheng Man Taif BERLE! - 3,456 24 162 18 3,600
Madam Ngok Ming Chu EHR% L = 3,469 72 148 18 3,707
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza** BEELL™ = 3,601 107 139 18 3,925
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen BE2RE = 740 21 33 = 794
Ms. Lu Qun BEEYT - 1,316 84 76 - 1,476
= 12,642 308 558 54 13,562
Inclependlent non-executive BUFHTEE .
directors:
Mr. Lau Siu Ki AEmELSE 358 - - 11 - 369
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung I 358 - - 11 - 369
Prof. lee T. S. SREHR 358 = = 11 = 369
1,074 = = 33 = 1,107
1,074 12,642 308 591 54 14,669

Mr. Cheng Man Tai resigned as an executive director of the
Company on 1 February 2022.

#  Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza, a director of the Company, is also the

chief executive officer of the Company.

There were no arrangements under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed fo waive any remuneration
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

There was no remuneration paid during the year to the
directors as an inducement fo join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office (2021: Nil).

B EEER CE —F _H—HEHE
KREHITEFZH -

" ARBEFBEER LI EFRAEZ
TTECABI G ©

HE_E__F#+-_A=+t—HULEFET
EEEITBER Z W R R W TR #EH
Bz 228k o

FEBRENRERESEHERF
TERBEEINA TN A 2 B BRI 22 B
SHIEABBEME (CE—F 1 §)
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11. Five Highest Paid Individuals

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2021 four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in nofe 10 to the financial statements above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2021: one)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

M. agmkEmHANL

FRAEESHALTEE=8EF(ZZ
“—F:0ER)  HFEMFBEER EXHM
BRI 108t - FREEGR—Z (CF
T—F ! —R)FERADEFHITEAER
ZEREHEEZFMFENT

2021
TET—F
HK$'000
FBT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e s 2REREYRN G

Bonuses TEAT
Equity-sefiled share option expense
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

G R RRERX
RREFFTBIMHRR

1,201
42
49
98

1,390

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

#ENEB IS LA T AR 2 IFEFE KRR T &L
REHESAENT

Number of employees
EEAE
2021
T —F

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000

1,000,001 &7 ZE 1,500,000 &7t

During the year ended 31 December 2020, share options
were granted to non-direcfor and non-chief executive highest
paid employees in respect of their services to the Group,
further details of which are included in the disclosure in note
30 fo the financial statements. The fair value of the share
options granted in 2020, which has been recognised in the
income statement over the vesting period, was determined as
at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements is included in the above non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.
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12. Income Tax

No provision for Hong Kong profifs tax has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2021: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated af the rafes of tax prevailing
in the regions in which the Group operates.

12, 3 B

P 2 SR B P A AAE B A A A E
IR > B RHREBRISREE
=0 ) o HftiH ERIERI 2
WAE A SEEEXHHEZ BAME
5o

2021
-
HK$'000
FET

Current — Mainland China BIHERATR IE — R B A fE
Charge for the year FERRIE 10,500
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBREREE =
Deferred (note 27) RIE (f5E27) 602
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year FEEZHBRIES Y (K%R) 11,102

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before fax
at the sfatutory rates for the regions in which the Company and
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expense/ (credit) at the effective tax rafe is as follows:

MUARB R E KRB B AT s e
EEMERFNATEG RS B ZIRERX
BFRAERRNIAE MBS E, (E%)
BYSIARUOT :

2021

—E-—F

HK$'000

TFET

Loss before tax PRIRBIE1R (16,383

Tax at the applicable statutory rates BREEREFSEZRIE (3,858)

Adjustment in respect of current fax of B HAR BN EATR TR AR 2

previous periods -

Income not subject fo tax BARIRZ WA (2,003)

Expenses not deductible for tax AEMiRz Fx 15,528

Tax losses utilised from previous periods FABEHREMRIAERE (2,004)

Tax losses not recognised KHERIRIBEE 2,584

Others HAh 855
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BRAEE ERRMEAE L

FRIEL 1 11,102
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13. Related Party Transactions
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
fransactions with related parties during the year:

13.FHEANLRS
(0) MZEHBRREMIOFTMZ 5
AEERENEGREATETZEA
REWMTF

2021
—E-—&
Notes HK$'000
Mtz FET
Continuing transactions HEXS
Purchases of fumniture and decoration mRAEA B BB &
services for counters and shops B 2 BRI R BB ARTS
as well as different types of IDYSE=S =Ry =]
moulds from related companies (i) 19,280
Rental expenses for a warehouse KABEFWEREEZ
charged by a director of the Company A £:Bi3% (ii) 336
Consultancy fee to a substantial BARRABEFERR
shareholder of the Company SRS (iii) -
Notes: L3

[l The purchases of furniture and decoration services for
counters and shops as well as different types of moulds from
2 BHERTERE G (R BRAR (Duosiwei Metal &
Plastic Products (Shenzhen) Co., lid.) and E 1 % B4EKE
&2 g T 2 B R 2 8 [Changzhou Duosiwei Fumiture
Decoration Construction Co., ltd.), related companies
controlled by Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen, an executive
director of the Company, and ¥TBAEE 2 (RII) BRA
8] (Xinsiwei Industry (Shenzhen) Co., ltd.], a related
company controlled by close family members of Mr. Cheng
Chuen Chuen, an executive director of the Company, were
made according fo the terms similar to those offered by the
Group's independent suppliers. The balances owed to
related companies as at 31 December 2022 amounted to
HK$5,908,000 (2021: HK$10,792,000) and were
unsecured, interestfree and repayable in accordance with
normal trading terms. The amounts have been included in
other payables and accruals as at the end of the year.

[i)  The rental expenses were charged by Madam Ngok
Ming Chu, an executive director of the Company, and
determined with reference to the then prevailing market
conditions.

[ii) ~ Mr. Cheng Man Tai, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, had been engaged as a consultant of the
Company for a term of one year with effect from 1
February 2022. The terms of consultancy fee were based
on a consultancy agreement entered info between the
Company and Mr. Cheng Man Tai.
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i)  DRBEEABNTESBEDNSE
FrihIRBE AT 2 BHRSBR
B CRY) BRRAB RN % B4
REEMHTIZAERATURLSATE
WITEEBED T ERFRBETIEH
HEAE AT BHESTE CRY) BIR
NEBEBBAEHZ RRREE
RIS RS ERERERARER
B ERR M AETAEE -
TEC T HF+"RA=+—HX{IM
BN T 2 45 A 5,908,000 T
—EBZ—%:10,792,000%T)
THERR s R B RER—REER
BB - ZASEECHNEREZH
HIEEAth FE (S T IE B FE ST RUE o

(i) AERAXBHAARERTEEER
%ﬁiuﬁzﬁyjﬁ%%éﬁﬂ%ZFﬁiﬁfé
/E o

i) AREFERRBERILEE-Z
—THF B —HEEZEAKRRF
FAR A HA—F - BRI BERIRRER
ﬁf@ﬁﬁiéﬁﬁﬂﬁ%iZ%ﬁE@ﬁ%%
= AE °



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

$A 5 it 7% B Wk (a0)

31 December 2022 —_E_—"&#+_"A=+—H

13. Related Party Transactions (continved)

(a)  (continued)
The above fransactions constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and their details are disclosed in the report of the
directors.

The directors are of the opinion that the above
transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of

business of the Group.

(b)  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group

13.FEANLRY )

(a) (#&
RiE FHRAIE 4AZ > U EXRS
BRFERERS > BEEEER
EEGRENRE °

EER/LERGERAEERR
EBBIEPET -

(h) FEEFEEEASZFHM

2021
s
HK$'000
FET

Short term employee benefits FRHAE B 2T
Postemployment benefits BEI BB A

Equity-settled share option expense

RIS BRI RS

16,113
257
606

Total compensation paid to
key management personnel

XA FEEEEAS Z B

16,976

Further details of directors’ and chief executive's
remuneration are included in note 10 to the financial

EERITBABSFMOFEEN M
BRRMIEE 10 ©

statements.
14. Dividends 14. )k B
2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
TET
Dividends paid during the year: FREMHRE :
Final in respect of the BE_Z_—F+_F=+—H
financial year ended 31 December 2021 IHMBEERARE — &
— Nil (2021: Final in respect of the (CBE_—F BE_E"F
financial year ended 31 December 2020 +ZA=+—HIHEFEFRH
— HK2.5 cents per ordinary share| BB — BREER2.58() 10,560
Inferim — Nil (2021: HK2.0 cents FEARE — E(CEBE - —F .
per ordinary share) FREIER 2.081l) 8,448
19,008

The board of directors of the Company does not recommend
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31

December 2022.

TRREFE I ERREBRE_T_—F
TZA=+—HIEFEZFRERE -
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15. Loss Per Share Attributable to 15 4wl B O\ JE A 4 it i 48
Owners of the Company
(a) Basic (a) EZ
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on: BREABEIZUTEESE !
2021
—E- %
HK$'000
TET
Loss 58
Loss attributable to owners of the Company, FBREtESREEREE
used in the basic loss per share calculation — AATHEHE AFE(LEE (27,485)

Number of shares

Liab g 4=
2021
=T —F
Shares z{n
Number of ordinary shares of the Company st EAA B EREAREE
in issue, used in the basic loss per share FIERAZ EREETT
calculation B RS 422,416,638
Basic loss per share [HK cents) SRREAREE GBI (6.51)
(b)  Diluted (b) #&
No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per BE_Z_—HFREBZ_F+T
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 B=+—HLFE BkEARE
December 2022 and 2021 in respect of a dilution as ER B HIt > AFEE I EBERR
the impact of the share options has antidilutive effect on 2 SREREIREEE o

the basic loss per share amounts presented.
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. %135 ~ Wz B fli
Furniture,
fixtures
leasehold ~ Plontand  and office Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvemenls  machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
fiffh RE

HEnz HER  RMAZE
& e i By ] g HEIE it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Fir Fir Fir FEr Fir Fir Fir

2022 .
Cost: B

At 1 Jonuary 2022 Rl

Addiions e

Disposals/writeoff HE /s

Tronsfers gs

Transer fo invesimen propetes  BAZRENE (Hio)

[nofe o

Exchange redlignment ERAE

At 31 December 2022 RIE_E+"A=1-H
Accumuloted depreciafion: ZHHE:

At 1 Jonuary 2022 RZ%__£-R-H

Provided during the year R

Disposals/wteoff e/ Hi

Tronster o investment poperfies ~ BEERENE (fo)

[nofe a

Exchange redlignment ERAE

At 31 December 2022 RIE_E+"A=1-H
Net book value: RESE

At 31 December 2022 RZE_“#+ZR=1-H
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment

16. 0% ~ Wm KLkl @)

(continued)
Fumiture,
fixtres
leasehold Plontond ~ and office Motor  Construction
Buldings  impovemens  machinery  equipment vehicles in progess Tolol
ffi %E
HEE BERk  RBAZE
BF £ s B RE fEIR st
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000
TEr TAn TEr TEr Tir TEr TEr
2021 -
Cost Ax.
At T Jonuary 2021 R-E_-%£-F-H 088,637 3,690 311,908 351,290 11,546 152 1,667,223
Addifions hE = = 2131 7316 = 1783 11,230
Disposals/wiiteff dE /i - - (63) (1831) (1.559) - (3,449)
Tronsfers v - - 06 1822 - (1,888) -
Transfer o invesimen propeties BRERENE (Wit

[nofe af 49,703 = = = = = 49703
Exchange realignment ERHE 23,364 - 7525 8,163 169 3 30.224
At 31 December 2021 RZZ-_-E+"RA=1-R 062298 3,690 321,567 366,760 10,160 0 1,664,525

Accumuloted depreciion: ZEIE
At T Jonuary 2021 RZE_—%-B-H 137,627 3,690 116,855 275,541 10,873 = 544,586
Provided during the yeor EREE 20936 - 26,032 32979 359 - 80,306
Disposals/ writeoff e /s - - 62) (1.821) (1.49) - (3,378
Transfer o invesimen propeties BEERENZ (W)

[note af 5,292) = = = = = (5,292)
Exchange realignment ERHE 3491 - 3,090 6,014 160 - 13,355
At 31 December 2021 RZZF_-E+"A=1+-A 156,762 3,690 145915 313,313 9,897 - 629577

Net book value: RESE:
At 31 December 2021 ey ey 805,536 = 175,652 53,447 263 50 1,034,948
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. %135 ~ B Kk fli o)

(continued)

Notes: HtsE :

(@)  During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group rented o) BEE"HF+-B=+—HILFE>
out certain floors of its owner-occupied properties to an REEMBUE=HHBHETYER
independent third party for rental income. At the date of change B LURERFA S WA « RERIRREEE
in use, this property became investment property. Upon the B ZEMEMAHRENE - BWE -
transfer from property, plant and equipment of HK$9,929,000 BB R #EA9,029,0008T (CE-—
[2021: HK$44,411,000) and corresponding right-ofuse land 1 44,411,000%87T) IERAEEEZ
of HK$489,000 (2021: HK$1,357,000) to investment &+ A4800008 T(Z T - — &F:
properties, this property was revalued at HK$ 14,070,000 1,357,000 8 70) BB EREY R » &%
[2021: HK$59,759,000) with a revaluation surplus of EYERE4A14,070,000855 (ZF
HK$3,652,000 (2021: HK$13,991,000) credited to the T —%F 159,759,000 7T) c MEMGER
asset revaluation reserve. BR3,652,000%8 Tt( = & = — F:

13,991,000 #87%) st ABEE R -

(b) At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's buildings with a b) RIBEZZHF+B=+—H x&EH
net carrying amount of approximately HK$2,512,000 (2021: ETEFFEEN2,512,000F T (Z=F
HK$2,613,000) were pledged to secure general banking Z—1%:2,613,000#7T) BIEIRIEARE
facilities granted to the Group (note 25). FAREBN—ARIBITRRE VIR (M 5E

25) o
17. Investment Properties 17. 8 &M%
2021
— -1
HK$'000
THET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZREE 448,193

Changes in fair value (nofes 6 and 9) NEAEEE) (3T 6 9) 3,072

Transfer from property, plant and BREBEYE - RE KRB

equipment and rightof-use land (nofe 16) EFRREL 3 (BifaE 16) 59,759

Exchange realignment PE D FEEE 9,539

Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZB=+—HZKmE 520,563

The Group's investment properties are situated at 6th Floor, REEZREYEDHUNE B AZR

Wyler Centre Il, 200 Tai lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New KEHE 20058 B MmO 28618 » HE

Terrifories, Hong Kong, at No. 508, Kunming Road, Yangpu iEmigEE R 508 3R & EE N

District, Shanghai, the PRC, and certain floors of the building L&A B 2505 AEE TIERE o

located at 259 Hehaixi Road, Xinbei District, Changzhou, the KEEZKEYETIRIEHRERLEE o

PRC, respectively, and are held under medium term leases.

Annual Report £E3% 2022 / Embry Holdings Limited Z#15#RAERAT 143



144

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

7% e 2 B 5 ()

31 December 2022 —E_—&#+_"A=+—H

17. Investment Properties (confinved)

At 31 December 2022, the Group's investment property
situated in Hong Kong with a fair value of HK$92,000,000
(2021: HK$91,000,000) was pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 25).

The Group's investment properties situated in Hong Kong and
Mainland China were revalued on 31 December 2022
based on valuations performed by Cushman & Wakefield
Limited ("CWL"), independent professionally qualified valuers.
Valuations were based on the capitalisation of net rental
income derived from the existing tenancies with due allowance
for the reversionary income potential of the properties, or
where appropriate, with reference to comparable market
fransactions and evidence and taking into consideration
adjustments that reflect differences in transaction timing,
location and tenure.

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group's
properties. Selection criteria of an external valuer include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are mainfained. Management discusses
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed for financial reporting.

There has been no change from the valuation fechnique used
in prior years. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The investment properties are leased tfo third parties under
operating leases, further summary defails of which are included
in note 18 fo the financial statements.
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17. Investment Properties (confinved) 17. 8/ EW*E @)
Fair value hierarchy RFEBEER
The fair values of the Group's investment properties as at 31 RIB__HF+-RA=+—BKkZZ"_—
December 2022 and 2021 were estimated by using F+ZA=+—H > xEEUEKXRFOTH
significant unobservable inputs and the fair value ZMABERGF 2 REYEZ A TEER
measurements were categorised under Level 3. RNEBESFEDENE=MRET
Reconciliation of fair value measurement categorised within RAFEBEERE=HADEZATEE
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: STEHER
Hong Mainland
Kong China
&4 REARE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 A BT —F-F—HZEEEE 86,000 362,193
Changes in fair value recognised in R mERAERZ
the income statement NEEEEE 5,000 (1,928)
Transfer from owneroccupied properties ERE TR (B 16)
[note 16) - 59,759
Exchange realignment B SO s = 9,539

Carrying amount af 31 December 2021 and
at 1 January 2022

Changes in fair value recognised in REmRAERZ
the income statement NTBEEEH

Transfer from owneroccupied properties EEB T (LB (KL 16)
[note 16)

Exchange realignment EOE

A BT —F+"A=+—HN
“E"HF—-B—HZKREE

Carrying amount af 31 December 2022

RZEZ"F+"A=+—H
ZAREE

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FER o BT 4 R EER AT
measurements between Level 1 and level 2 and no transfers BEFE X TEEAF=_AFEFE=4E

into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil).

HECEZ—F 8 -
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17. Investment Properties (confinved)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the

17. 8% EWM¥E 1)
AFBELE (&)
U T AR EEGEEREEST ERTE

key inputs fo the valuation of investment properties: WARIBZRE
Significant
Class of property Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs
LR fhERH* EXFABRRBARE FrAIBRRBABEEER
2021

Hong Kong Market comparable Cross unit rafe HK$3,500 to
— Commercial properties method per square foot HK$3,600
— level 3 (note i)

BB MG LLEUA BYHREBMEE 3,500 TE
— EBARYE (MfaEi) 3,600 %7t
— B=MR

Mainland China Income capitalisation  Capitalisation rate 2.5% to
— Commercial properties approach per annum [nofe ii) 8.25%
— level 3

R AR WAB X BFEEACE (W) 2.5%%F
— BRYE 8.25%
— EB=MR

Notes: Bzt

The higher the gross unit rate per square foot, the higher the fair

value.

ii.  The higher the capitalisation rate per annum, the lower the fair ii.

value.

18. Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of office
premises and sfores used in its operafions. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners
with lease periods of 45 to 50 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land leases.
leases of office premises and stores generally have lease terms
between 1 and 7 years. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assefs outside the
Croup. There are several lease confracts that include extension
and ferminafion opfions and variable lease payments.
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18. Leases (continued) 18.H 8 »)
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEAEBEA #)
()  Right-of-use assets () fERAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's rightof-use assets FrEEFREREEENKREER

and the movements during the year are as follows: BENUNF
Leasehold
land Buildings Total
et 1gF Wzt
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 N_&2_—F—H—H 137,840 52,213 190,053
Additions e - 67,545 67,545
Transfer to investment EERELEYE
properties [note 1/ (K152 17) (1,357) - (1,357)
Termination of leases KRIEFRE - (3,572) (3,572)
Depreciation charge TEEH (3,926) (52,935) 56,861)
Impairment charge HEER - (25,777 (25,777)
Exchange realignment FERRE 2,993 1,839 4,832

At 31 December 2021

AZE—H+ZA=+—H
—H

and 1 January 2022 R-_E-—F—H1
Additions B
Transfer to investment BREKEE
propetties (nofe 17) Bz 17)
Termination of leases RIEHE
Depreciation charge WEER
Impairment charge HEER
Exchange realignment R AR

At 31 December 2022 RZE_"#+"A=+—H

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's rightof- RZE2E__H#+”"A=+—H"' =&
use land with a net carrying amount of approximately EEEREFEEA11,743,00087T (=
HK$11,743,000 (2021: HK$12,214,000) was T —F:12,214000%FT) W&
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted fo TR HERFEARTAE
the Group (nofe 25). B —ARIRITREE RUHER (B95E25)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the BE_E__F+-A=+—HL
impairment loss of HK$18,796,000 (2021: FE > FEEE18,796,00087T (=
HK$25,777,000) represented the write-down of the T —F:25777,000%7%) 5@
carrying amount of right-of-use assets for certain R KkCovid19IRE RN T EEB
underperforming stores fo their recoverable amounts HEBETRE > M ETRERE
because the market conditions and the impact after the [EENERAEEENREENRAE
outbreak of Covid-19 were out of management's HellEI£E RS __F+_
expectation. The estimated recoverable amounts as at B=+—HpMEs I EEET 1R
31 December 2022 were determined based on their BEAMRERI2%EENERE
value in use amounts estimated by using a discount rafe BEE(CEZ—F: 14%) °

of 12.6% (2021: 14%).
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18. Leases (continued) 18.H 8 »)
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEAEBEA #)
(b)  Lease liabilities ) FHEER
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the FRNHEERNREERESNT :
movements during the year are as follows:
2021
=&
HK$'000
TET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BREE 93,440
New leases HEE 67,012
Termination of leases ®IERE (3,929)
Accretion of inferest recognised FARESDH S0
during the year 4,018
Covid-19-related rent concessions B HFEARMHE Covid-19
from lessors B IEERNEER R (818)
Payments (NES (82,800)
Exchange realignment FE D SEEE 1,042
Carrying amount at 31 December R+—A=+—HBiKEE 78,865
Analysed info payable: DT AR RIE
Within one year —FR 47,468
In the second year E_F 21,838
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FEEHF (BEERFE) ©,004
Beyond five years BiafHE 555
/8,865
less: Current portion B L REhER D (47,468)
Non-current portion JERENE D 31,397
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HESRIMIMNMBRERMT
note 35 to the financial statements. 351KEE °
The Group has applied the practical expedient to all FEBHFAETEFHELHEA
eligible rent concessions granted by the lessors for leases MTNFIBEGERHEETERERA
of certain buildings during the year. THERE -
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18. Leases (continued) 18. M E &)
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEAEBEA #)
() The amounts charged/(credited) in the income statement in () RUzmFRIOK (5t A) BN EEREE
relation to leases are as follows: I
2021
=
HK$’000
F#ET
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEMNE 4,018
Depreciation charge of rightofuse assets  {FRIEEETERS 56,861
Expense relating fo shortterm leases rOHERTEEABRERSE 302,545
Variable lease payments not included in -~ I st ATHEEEEN
the measurement of lease liabilities AR S =R 4,278
Covid-19-related rent concessions EHBEARMEE Covid-19
from lessors BIEHEENEEER (818)
Impairment of rightof-use assets FEREBEERE 25,777
Total amount recognised in the income U ER R RSO 4B RE
statement 392,661
(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 33(c) to () FEERSHBEENRY RIS I3
the financial statements. IREE ©
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18. Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties [note 17) consisting
of commercial properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China,
and part of its owner-occupied staff quarters, under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the tenants fo pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the
year was HK$21,251,000 (2021: HK$18,912,000),
details of which are included in note 6 to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

18. & &)

FEEHLEA
FEBRBFEEHERHEEEREYE
(FsE17) > BIEEBRPBEIRMAIE A
MEKRBMPERYEEIRES - HERN
BEERBPZARES  WIREEFRH
ROHWRETEREERE - xEEERN
FEERFAEUIA 21,251,000 8T (28 =—
F:18,912,00087%) > BRAFIBEHN
FERARMIEES ©

A B F+ZA=+—H8 > xEER
AR IR R EFR P 2 N e] iR =
EMRBCRASIRFAE MR T ¢

2021
=BT —fF
HK$’°000
FET

Within one year —FR
After one year but within two years —FRBEMENRN
After two years but within three years —FBB=FRA
After three years but within four years =FBRENFERN
After four years but within five years MERBRFRN
After five years hE®E

23,458
19,008
15,830
10,994
7,457
9,307

86,054

Embry Holdings Limited Z#175 AR AT / Annual Report R 2022



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

7% e 2 B 5 ()

31 December 2022 —_E_—"&#+_"A=+—H

19. Other Asset

19 Kt & &

In accordance with the requirements of the Shenzhen City's
urban development plan issued by the Shenzhen City Luohu
District Town Re-development Bureau (7R3 2848 & 3k i 247
&), on 23 October 2017, Embry (China) Garments Lid.
("Embry SZ"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
enfered info a relocation compensation agreement and a
supplemental relocation compensation agreement (collectively
known as the “Relocation Compensation Agreement”) with
Shenzhen Huiren Jewelry City Investment Limited (FHIFTERIZ
KREWIEERRAE), a company established in the PRC and
an independent third party developer (the “Developer”) in
order to implement a renewal plan by demolishing and
rebuilding in the Buxin Industrial Area, Shenzhen, the PRC. The
details of the Relocation Compensation Agreement are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 25 October 2017.
According to the Relocation Compensation Agreement, Embry
SZ shall surrender ifs lond use right and ifs properties situated
in the Buxin Industrial Area (the “"Original Properties”). The
Developer, in return, agreed fo (i) compensate Embry SZ with
new properties in a form of new industrial research and
development buildings (¥r8EE =R M AR MELEEZE) on
a piece of industrial purposed land with an area similar fo that
of the Original Properties to be developed and built by the
Developer (the “New Properties”); (i) compensate Embry SZ
the cost of land use right of the Original Properties, rental cost
for Embry SZ to lease properties during the move out period
and other costs related fo the Relocation Arrangement (“Cash
Compensation”), which are payable by the Developer up to
the end of the move out period; and (iii) sell exira properties at
a new building to be constructed in the Buxin Industrial Areq,
Shenzhen, the PRC (“New Building”) to Embry SZ, whereby
the price and area of such properties at the New Building
shall be subject to further negotiation between Embry SZ and
the Developer (collectively known as the “Relocation
Arrangement”).

Embry SZ has moved out from the Original Properties in the
prior years and signed the properties transfer confirmation (5=
BB RZHEEE) with the Developer on 30 November 2017.

R 28 8 & 5 T B A= iB e Y R
MM EERENRE > R —tF+
BZ+=H > Z#5 (FE) REBRAE
TZ#ZF » KABNEERBAT)
SRR HRERREERAT (—”
RABERINABDRBILE=-FEERS
(FEEREm))) ST MEBHERERETR
BEEwmE (RBTREMERZEL > U
BERPEZENIAOTEERRERERL
BfERE o MBHEREEBEHINA
ATPPATE—+tE+A - +HEHNR
o IREMBREERZE > TR B FIFR
HEMRBOTIEBHNYE (TRYE)) E
R HERE  ZEEFMILLER()HE
ZRFS RN BRI ZEFTEN T X Bt
TRAEEEERENEEN I E
MAERIEEmENYE TFHYWED ; (i)
BEZF S FYIRYE T MER R
ZHRFS RPN BREHE A EYENHEER
ARERREBHENEMAA (TR
) sEEAREEBHBERRER
EEE ; Klii)mZFH 75 R EE P EF
O TEEFET (FHEF)) 958N
¥ BRI MBFZEMEZEBREA
BARZH SR HEREE—TERR
FAEE (RBZHE) o

ZHRFRNERBEFEEANBRERYE
TR —E—tE&E+—HA=+THREREEHR
S EERBHEE o
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19.

20.

Embry Holdings Limited Z#175

Other Asset (confinued)

To the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the
Company's directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
the Group does not expect any obstacles fo receive the New
Properties and the Cash Compensation from the Developer.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
derecognised the property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments. According to the terms of the Relocation
Compensation Agreement and the property transfer
confirmation, the Group also recognised the fair value of the
right to receive the New Properties ("Other Asset’) as “Other
Asset” and the receivables in relation to Cash Compensation
during the year ended 31 December 2017. Other Assef is
initially recognised at its fair value and subsequently carries at
cost less impairment.

At 31 December 2022, the carmying amounts of Other Asset
and receivables in relation to Cash Compensation under the
Relocation Arrangement were approximately
HK$402,697,000 (2021: HK$437,073,000) and
HK$7,824,000 (2021: HK$15,306,000) (note 22),

respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, the recoverable amount of Other
Asset has been determined based on its fair value according
fo the valuation by using direct comparison method performed
by CWL, an independent professional qualified valuer. The
valuation was dependent on cerfain significant unobservable
inputs including gross unit rafe per square metre with a range
of RMB36,800 to RMB46,000 (2021: RMB36,800 to
RMB46,000] and an annual discount rate of 4.75% (2021
4.75%). The fair value measurement was categorised under
level 3.

9. Hith & & (@)

BAERBERFH -G EEHRFR

A~ BEKRREE $$lﬁ%%%@ﬁw
B R RIS HEN S HIREMAER o
BE_T—tF+"RA=+—HLEE>

REBRILFESYE ~ BB k& B REAN
HENTRIREE - RiIEREMEHRNE
EBRERERT Z2EERBEE_ZT
—tE+-A=+—HLEFEFRER=®
WSS ECT Y =R ER (TEMEE)) B9
AFE > REWIREMHE HMBEEDD
BHATERET » BREAABREANR °

R _F+"_A=+—H Hth&EE
A BB 2 BV IR S M E R WGRIRARE
BERAIA402,697, 0008 (T —4F !
437,073,0007%7t) K 7,824,000 %7t (=
T 1 15,306,000 %7T) (HEE22) ©

A B _F+_HA=+—H  HtEE
M eI ECERN B XS ERMGE
TR ERITIRE B BUAETTMER
NEEERE o HEBARETEARATEH
R AR > BIESTHAEEUESDE
AR #36,800F A R#§46,000( = =
— —fF: AN R 3680 A B I
46,000) REBRIREKA 75% (Z B _—4F :
4.75%) o AN BEFENDENRE=ZHRIE
—Fo

Inventories 20. 7+ &
2022 2021
g BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Raw materials =y 45,042 39,273
Work in progress p U 32,572 45,774
Finished goods BN R 380,642 441,311
458,256 526,358
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21. Trade Receivables

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for certain wholesalers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally for
a period of one month, extending up fo three months for major
customers. The Group seeks fo mainfain strict confrol over ifs
outstanding receivables by the sales department to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group's frade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over ifs trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-inferestbearing.

An ageing analysis of the Group's frade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

21 W B 5 IR K

AEBRTENEERTLAEERENTE
B E—REERETHEBRALAN -
EEH—RA—ER  EBERZEEH
AIFEE=ER - ~EEZHEMBRIER
Wz FEURRIR - LUBRIE BRI - B
BRI SR EIRE TR o & PRt
RAEEEZ BRE SRR RETIEZE
FEAEPASRSZ  HUEEEBEES
th2 kR o ANEE T ERL H B U E 5 IR
EHRFAEMRRRREMEENRE
it o FEUN B BRI AR ©

AEERRSHEEEH 2 BIRE RN
RIBERHRZRE DA ¢

2021
s F
HK$'000
FAET

Within Q0 days QOHRMA

91 to 180 days Q1E180H
181 to 360 days 181E360H
Over 360 days 360BMU E

50,103
1,840
1,891
3,718

BB

less: Impairment allowance

57,552

(5,609

51,943

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of frade
receivables are as follows:

EWE ZRRz BIREHEEEIT -

2021
—E_—F
HK$'000
FET

At 1 January n—BA—H

Impairment recognised, net (nofe 9)

RERESD  FER (M Q)

4,630
Q79

At 31 December

R+-—B=+—H

5,609
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21. Trade Receivables (confinved) 21. W 5 MR ()
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date RERSBRARBREEBEEETRED
using a provision matrix to measure ECls. The provision rates i LStERIREEEE - BEXDLAER
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer BEHEUSBBEANZER R 2458485 (B
segments with similar loss patterns [i.e., by geographical MIB&EREFBE) NEAXEET o
region and customer type). The calculation reflects the ZETERBREAENELER - EERER
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and RRE BT BNAERIBEEE - ERifF
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the R AR RAS B IR TR S IR K I 5e B kY o

reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure U85 A RAAE B R E 5 AR E AR
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: HIEENEERBRRER
As at 31 December 2022 RZE2__F+”"A=+—H

ECL rate FAHEERIEX
Gross carrying amount [HK$'000]  BRETAE(E (T37T)
ECLs (HK$'000) BHiEEEE (TAT)
As at 31 December 2021 W2 —%+-“HA=+—H
Past due
gl
lt03 3109 Over 9
Current months months months Total
fER 1E3EA 3ZE9ER BBOMER fst
ECL rate BEEERIEX 0.05% 1.13% 97.57% 100.0% 9.75%
Gross carrying amount [HK$'000)  BREI4E(E (Ti7T) 50,103 1,840 1,891 3,718 57,552
ECLs {HK$'000) BHEEEE (TET) 25 21 1,845 3718 5,609

154 Embry Holdings Limited Z#1551ERRERAE / Annual Report £E3R 2022



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

$A 5 it 7% B Wk (a0)

31 December 2022 —_E_—"&#+_"A=+—H

22. Prepayments, Deposits and Other

2z§ﬁ%£\§ﬁﬁﬁmmWﬁ

Receivables
2021
—ET—F
HK$'000
TFHET
Deposit paid and related direct cost WHELLER TSR
for the land use right in Shandong BeRAEFEEER Q9,944
Deposits for acquisition of items of WRREYIZE ~ BRE R BEIE R
property, plant and equipment [SANE: &7 2,840
Prepayments SEANEOE 21,825
Receivables in relation to Cash BRAREBZHNIREME
Compensation under the Relocation FEWGRIAE (K152 19)
Arrangement (note 19) 15,306
Deposits and other receivables & R HAMEUGRIE 47,305
Q7,220
Current portion included in prepayments, ST ATEAIE ~ e R HEAM
deposits and other receivables FE WRRIE 2 BDERER (7 (76,438)
Non-current portion JFBNHERER (A 20,782
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other HipEWE 2 e EE2Esu T -
receivables are as follows:
2021
-
HK$'000
TFET

At 1 January n—A—H

Impairment recognised, net (note 9)

REFERD  PER ()

At 31 December “+-_B=+—H

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental and
other deposits and receivables in relation to Cash
Compensation under the Relocation Arrangement. Where
applicable, an impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by considering the probability of default of
comparable companies with published credit ratings. In the
situation where no comparable companies with credit ratings
can be identified, expected credit losses are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach with reference fo the historical
loss record of the Group. The loss rafe is adjusted to reflect the
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions,
as appropriate.

BERAMBUREEZEARRBLHT
REMHERMIVEEME MRS R EUGR
He AEANERT  BBEBRBAM
EAFTARFIEE A B REXNRR > 58
BEBETREDN - WREEHAE
BEERRNALEAR > MRS ERER
B LR RSB B IR A LSt TRERE
FRBK - SAEBRKLURBERRE R
R IRASEARSTHITRR ©
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22.

23.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other
Receivables (confinued)

Except for the aforementioned impaired other receivables, the
financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default
and past due amounts, and the loss allowance was assessed
fo be minimal as at 31 December 2022.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

22, A RKIH - % 4 B A Wk

JH (#8)

B bt O SR E = EMPEUCRIES) - B A b
AN S B A B A HE /R RS HA
HFEWEIE - B - E+ =B =+—
FiB5 B S ST BIHIE o

23. 5l LB & FED

2021
TET—F
HK$'000
FABT

Cash and bank balances R KM IRITHEER

Non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity of less than three months
when acquired

Non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity period over three months

when acquired

N YNGIEEEIS PSS
=88 Z EIREHEMR

REBARREIHAAZR
=B8R Z ERRERER

Cash and cash equivalents

RERFEFEY)

378,636

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi ("RMB”)
amounted to HK$359,089,000 (2021: HK$318,725,000).
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies; however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Confrol Regulations
and Administration of Setflement, and Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
fo conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are normally mode
for varying periods of between approximately one day and
three months on average depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Embry Holdings Limited Z#175 AR AT / Annual Report R 2022

FEBRRSHEEEEUARESEZ
& R IR1TAE R4 359,089,000 %7t (=
T —%:318,72500087T) - AR
BTV EHEZBRAEMERE - EREPE
REEZ SMEEIRIRG » URASE  REE
RSEEERE » AEBEEZBERE
ETINERZEFZIRTRARERIAS
HMEH -

IRTENREBESRIETERNXEEZF
BHFXE R o T REREE T35
W—RE=ZERATE » GFEERERZ
WEBNRME > WIZE R 2 FEEE TR
MEEE o SRITAEREFE R EED
SR EERIFIRIT -
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24. Trade and Bills Payable 24. A ¥ 5 IRk B I A 5 3%
An ageing analysis of the Group's trade and bills payable as AEBNRERBEER 2RI EZRM
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, REMERRZEZE BB ZRE 2N
is as follows: T -

2021

B

HK$'000

FET

Within Q0 days Q0HA 31,300

Q1 to 180 days QI1ZE180H 740

181 to 360 days 181 &360H 560

Over 360 days 360BM £ 1,376

33,976

The trade payables are non-interestbearing and are normally
seffled on 30 to Q0 days terms.

25. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings

Current B
Bank loans BIER

— secured - Bl
Bank loans BIER

— unsecured — B

BN EZRRLAFEE > —fRIC30E0

HR&AE ©
25. 5t B 847 fiF 3%
2021
-
Effective
inferest rate Matuity — HK$:000
L
(%) ] ThR
HIBOR +1.45 2022 47530
BERITEE
S +1.45
HIBOR+1.80 2022 10,357
BERTEE
7E+1.80
57,887
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25. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings 25. 5 B R AT 1 K ()

(continued)
2021
3%
Effective
interest rafe Maturty — HK$'000
BEA=
(%) il TET
Non-current E[:01):
Bank loans RITER HBOR+1.45 2023-2024 288,595
— secured - B EBROEX
FE+1.45
288,595
346,482
2021
=&
HK$'000
FET
Analysed into: pAR)ig
Bank loans repayable: R TYIHRRBER 2 IRITERR
Within one year or on demand —FAYREREE 57,887
In the second year BTF 64,757
In the third fo fifth years, inclusive FEFALE (BIFEREE) 223,838
346,482

less: Amount classified as current portion 5 A ENHRER D R ER (57,887)

Amount classified as non-current portion S ASFRIHAER D 58 288,595

Nofes: BaE :

(o]  The above bank loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollars (@ LHSRITERUBTHE S8R
and amounted to HK$327,472,000 (2021: 327,472,000%_7‘5( 2 —fF:
HK$346,482,000). 346,482,000 7T) °

[b)  Except for the bank loans of HK$10,357,000 as at 31 bl BRI —F+"A=1+—HZRIT

December 2021, the Group's bank loans are secured by:

[} mortgages over the Group's investment property situated
in Hong Kong of HK$92,000,000 (2021:
HK$91,000,000J; and

[i)  morgages over the Group's building of HK$2,512,000
(2021: HK$2,613,000) and corresponding rightof-use
land of HK$11,743,000 (2021: HK$12,214,000),

respectively.

158  Embry Holdings Limited 251551 ERAE / Annual Report £E3R 2022

B £%82 10,357,000 » &g
BETRITETIZU T A FEER

() URERUREBREYFEIR
#%92,000,000 8T (ZFZ—
£ 1 91,000,0007#7T) ;

(i) AREERF ARt
DRA2,512,000 8w (25—
F£:2,613,0008 & ) k&
11,743,000 T (Z2Z—%F:
12,214,000%7T) ©
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26. Other Payables and Accruals

26 . L A JE AF ik JH Je E w1 sk H

2021
g
HK$'000
FET

Nofes
faE

Other payables H AP (TR
Accruals fESTFIE
Contract liabilities HHEE

89,856
Q7,170
14,642

less: Amount classified as current portion

B FIZSENHRER D B = 2R

201,668
(197,221)

Amount classified as non-current portion

5 BN ER D B8R

4,447

Nofes:

(a)  The amounts of HK$5,908,000 (2021: HK$10,792,000)
included in other payables of the Group were due to related
companies as at 31 December 2022. These balances were
unsecured, inferestfree and repayable in accordance with
normal trading terms (nofe 13(alli)).

Other payables are non-inferestbearing.

(b)  As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022, the
contract liabilities included deferred revenue arising from the
loyalty points VIP programme of the Group and short-term
advances received from customers for the sale of goods of
HK$ 14,642,000 and HK$12,201,000, respectively. The
decrease in confract liabilities in 2022 and 2021 was mainly
due to the decrease in shortterm advances received from
customers for the sale of goods and deferred revenue arising
from the loyalty points VIP programme of the Group.

Annual Report %R 2022 / Embry Holdings Limited 2]

o) XEBREMECSREBRAIED
59008000 ww( = & = — F:
10,792,000 7T) jé)ﬁf::—_g::¢+:
B=+—HENSBEEABSZHRIB %%
ERAERIKE - RERER— ﬁﬁﬁgﬂk
TEE (MFEE13(a)i) ©

HtEARIESTE R ©

(b) A B —EFE+__RBA=t+t—HMNZ-=E
_TE+ZRBR=+—H AHNEESE
DA 14,642,0008 7t 12,201,000 %8
TEEAEERERHESEHEES
FIEIEW AR R & B M A & B UEY
E’]fﬂﬁﬂﬂ-ﬂ\ o TET—FER/RTETTHF
EHEBERLIETEARMEESERD
%)EM&HRE’J%JH@ R D A EEBEE
BHEZ BB EEMNIRLERE °
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27. Deferred Tax 2738 %€ Bl IH
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the FRRERIESEREESHIT !
year are as follows:
Temporary Withholding
difference faxes on Temporary Tox losses
arising from undistributed ~~~ difference of availoble
the Unrealised profison ~ impairment, for offsetfing
Revaluation Relocation profit of PRC provisions against future
of properties  Arrangement inventories subsidiories  and accruals Others  taxable profits Total
. AR
HEHERR BER RRERH
REsHET AR RO i bt
NREfE  ZEREE BRI BB ZEREG At L @it

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T 77 T T T T

At T January 2021 RZZ_-£-A-H 9,396 113434 (34,230) 33,098 (47,243) (8,187) (5,060) 61,200

Deferied fox debied fo equity ~ EREBRIIRZ
during the year EE 3,498 - - - - - - 3,498

Deferred fox charged/|crediied] SRR/
fo the income siatement (E%) LA

duing the year fnole 12] (i 12) 482) 1,656) 4250 1259 (11,393 8719 95) 602
Paymen's during the year FREA - - - [10,782) - [758) - (17,540)
Exchange reclignment ERHEE 266 2746 783) 692 (1,055) (9) (129) 1,646

At 31 December 2021 RIB- %
+-A=t-A 12,678 114524 (30.763) 24,267 59,693) (321) 5,286 55406

AT January 2022 RZB-"5-A-H

Deferied fox debiied fo equily ~ EREBRTIRZ
during the yeer BEHE

Deferred fox charged /|crediied]  EREME RN/
fo the income siatement (£%) zEiLHE
duing the year fnole 12] H=£12)

Payments during fhe yeor ERzf
Exchange relignment ERsE

At 31 December 2022 S
+-B=1-H
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27. Deferred Tax (continved)

27. B A BiIE ()

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

LIF%ZTK%%?THZ‘FEE%W% ZIEFERR IR
REER AT

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Deferred tax assets recognised in the AR E TSR R ESS 2 IR
consolidated statement of financial position MIBEE (74,542) (72,107)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the PR E M ANR RS Z IR
consolidated statement of financial position REEE 124,831 127,513
50,289 55,406

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$445,832,000 (2021: HK$423,079,000)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
faxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The
Group also has tax losses arising in Macau of
HK$2,630,000 (2021: HK$3,107,000) that will expire in
three years for offsefting against future taxable profits. Deferred
fax assefs have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as they have arisen in the Company and subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies fo eamings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding fax rafe may be applied if there is a tax freaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%.
In estimating the withholding taxes on dividends expected to be
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China
in respect of eamings generated from 1 January 2008, the
direcfors have made assessment based on the factors which
included dividend policy and the level of capital and working
capital required for the Group's operation in the foreseeable
future.

AEBREBELEZREEBEBLY
445,832,000 7w( = & = — &
423,079,000 7T) Tﬂtﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁi@ﬁﬁ&z
BERABZ RRERMEF o AEBITNE
B EEMRIEEIE 2,630,000 T (Z=
——%£ 3,107,000 » HR=ZFEANE
m o A IEEE E A RS E A B R R ERA A
Fl o AN ZEHETV BB EGE— Ex
Rz N A B RME AT B2 AR A
BEEER A A EEARIERE EYI
B SR IEMRIRERIEEE o

RIBEPEEEFTERE - IPBIAEERM L
ZHEREBINEREETIRZRE B
M10% 2 RINMK - BRARER —ZTT/N\F
—B—HELEXN BEBRAR-ZEZtHF
+ZRA=+—H®BZ&F - ﬁEPIi(IVEE—i
SNElIR B P B B A& S B IR IR
AEAZ RN KRR - %MK%@
ms > BRMEKRRS5%K10% - hstZ%E
PEEREI A BER LI B A B FREIRE L —F
TN\EFE—B—BEmMEENEFN MK
BREIRE » EFERESERBER
RAEBN P R REEPNBNERNE
BERKTFERRFLMG -
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27. Deferred Tax (continved)

At 31 December 2022, the aggregate withholding tax amount
arising from the temporary differences associated with these
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised fotalled approximately

HK$10,596,000 (2021: HK$15,420,000).

There are no income tax consequences atfaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

27 JEHEBH (#)

RZE_"F+_"_HB=+—H>» 8BxZ%
LKA A B A P B9 Y 28 2 B 48 R T R e B
FEIERBEENEREINREEES
H 4 410,506,0008 (=8 — —F:
15,420,000787T) °

AR B E RS I S B M S (R R P
BRMBRER o

28. Share Capital 28. kA
2021
=B
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: JERE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000 R =i mEmE
HK$0.01 each 0.01 BrhZiEG 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITARERE !
422,416,638 (2021: 422,416,638 422,416,638 (B —% .
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 422,416,638 %) EEE
0.01 BrolEER 4,224

29. Reserves

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents i) the excess of
the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant fo the reorganisation of certain members of the Group
which took place on 31 December 1992, over the nominal
value of issued shares of Embry Group Limited ("EGL") in
exchange therefor; (i) the premium arising from the shares
issued by EGL for sefflement of the amount due fo the ultimate
holding company of HK$15,841,000; (i) the premium
arising from the acquisition of Embry (H.K.) Limited (“Embry
HK") from the non-controlling interests of HK$5,000,000; and
(iv) the excess of the nominal value of the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant fo the group reorganisation,
over the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange therefor and the then existing 10,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each credited as fully paid at par.

Embry Holdings Limited Z#175 AR AT / Annual Report R 2022

29. i i

R MBEFEFERRBEBETRUAREE
HERINMBRERAGSRmETHRA o

FEBBHAEGFE(|REBEEANR NN
F+A=+t—HKBXEREFTHER
8 ZERE AT RMNEEBLRLLIE
2 3P EE1T Embry Group Limited (TEGLY)
RRASHEEZESE ; (i) ECLREERRIRE
R ABIFRIE 15,841,000 B o TEE
TRMOEENRE ; (i) AEERE R U
B2FS (BH8) BRAE (ZF5EH)
PIT 2 4 3% 18 5,000,000 8 7T ;5 Kz [iv) 1R #&
EEFAWEENEA B RANEEBSY
RABDERBFITUEAIMNRAEREN
HHOURZEEEARIIFHEEDN

10,000,000 SRR HEEOC.O1 BT ER
WERD °
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29. Reserves (continued)

29. fifi i (&)

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable in the
PRC, subsidiaries of the Company esfablished in the PRC are
required fo fransfer a cerfain percentage of their profits affer
fax, if any, fo the enterprise expansion and statutory reserve
funds, which are non-distributable, before profit distributions to
shareholders. The amounts of the transfers are subject fo the
approval of the boards of directors of these subsidiaries.

The Group applied the transitional provision of HKFRS 3 which
permits goodwill in respect of acquisitions which occurred
prior fo 1 January 2001, to remain eliminated against the
consolidated reserves. The amount of goodwill remaining in
consolidated reserves, arising from the acquisition of
subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2001, was stated at cost,
which amounted to HK$3,168,000 (2021: HK$3,168,000)
as at 31 December 2022.

30. Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 28
May 2020 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who
confribute fo the success of the Group's operations.

Share Option Scheme

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include (i)
any employee (whether full time or part time, including
directors but excluding any non-executive director) of the
Company, ifs subsidiaries or invested entity; (ii] any non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, its subsidiaries or invested entity; (iii)
any supplier or customer of the Group or any invested entfity;
(iv] any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to the Group or any invested entity;
and (v) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
invested entity or any holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any invested entity. The Share Option
Scheme became effective on 28 May 2020 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a
period of fen years to 27 May 2030.

30.

R EE A RVRRRE > ART R PE
RRIZAIMS B A B ZER HE T B 2 LEBIBRR
‘A (W0H) EEREFELEH 2 KA
BECEBRNEZERERES 98T H
DiK) o BENTEATZSH B RT
EESHERTFE -

AEBERAESBVHRSELE IFHEN
BEME R _EE—F—H—HA
ETWERTEEN R EH SRS REN
Hid o RENGERENEA T —F—
B—HaW R B AR EENEE ST
BAaSE ) RIS 2F+=-8=+—H
#3,168,0008 ww( = & = — &F:
3,168,000 7T) ©

Wi B¢ HE -
AABRN-EZBERA+/\BRAE
RS E) (REALESEL) > LUEAAER
MRIHIE ERM A B e 2 R E R AR
RiEH o

FERR A
BERESINEGERZEEGREEAR
) HtBAB SR E AR NE A2
XERBES (BFEEE > BFAEEEMAIE
HITES) ; (|28~ HRB AR ER
CENBINERIFERITES (BIE8IFF
BITER) ; | ~EETFAEEARNGE
fAEEERE S ; (VA AaXEEFTE
AP E A B EAZE ~ FREE S Ethi iy
SENEARRT ; RV AEBEALE
NBFFAREATDNTARERSERT
AIRE AR TR E A BTETEMES
HIFEA - BRESEN S ZZSFHA
ZHNBEM > BRIEWEFHTELE > [
EXNHBHRF+EE_S=ZSFA A
“+tHe
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30. Share Option Scheme (continved)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month
period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any fime. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders” approval in a general meeting.
Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company.

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant] in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is deferminable by the
direcfors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the share options, and ends on a dafe which is not
later than ten years from the date of the offer of the share
options or the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme, if
earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is deferminable by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as quoted on daily quotations
sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the ' Stock
Exchange”) on the date of the offer of the share options; [ii)
the average closing prices of the Company's shares as quoted
on the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
frading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and |iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
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30. Share Option Scheme (continved)

Share Option Scheme (continued)
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vofe at shareholders” meetings.

Sef ouf below are the outstanding share options under the
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2022:

30. 0 B HEEE B (2)
HBRGtEETE ()

FERR R AR TR A A B B S AR R

ARG LIRTERER] o

Q-2 7]) -

BT "F+R=1+—HE

RRRESTBITR TR ARITIERVER AR

Number of share options
iRty
A Granted Lapsed Exercised A Exercise price of
1 January during during during 31 December  Date of grant of Exercise period of share options
Name or category of parficipant 2022 the year the year the year 2022 share options share options”! HKS per share!!
it KZBZZE R TEE
SAERTIER -B-A EREL ERER EnffE +2AZt-A BRERLANR RlRiEmES SlEn
Executive directors H7EE
Madom Ngok Ming Chy e 1,300,000 - - - 1,300,000 30 December 2020 30 Decernber 2021 to 1.02
“5TBE+"A=1H 29 December 2025
ZEC-FTR=1HE
ZETRETCACTAA
Ms. Cheng Pk Holiza 2yt 1,220,000 - - - 1,220,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 fo 102
ZZZR2R=1A 29 December 2025
ZBC-F+ZRZ1HE
“ECRFTCACNA
M. Cheng Chuen Chuen HE2%E 295,000 - - - 295,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 o 102
e s 29 December 2025
ZZC-FTR=1HE
“ZCRETCACAA
Ms. lu Qun BByt 665,000 = = = 665,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 to 1.02
ZEIEEtTR=1R 29 December 2025
TECECACHAE
ZECRF+CACNA
Independent non-execufive directors B {TES
Mr. lou Siu Ki YRERE 100,000 = = = 100,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 fo 102
ZZZR+2R=1A 29 December 2025
ZBC-F+IR=1HE
ZECRFTCACNA
Mr. les Kiwon Hung ks 100,000 = = = 100,000 30 December 2020 30 Decernber 2021 to 102
“$TBF+"R=1H 29 December 2025
ZEC-F2R=1HE
ZZCRETCACNA
Prof. lee T.5. SREHR 100,000 - - - 100,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 o 102
ZECEF2R=1A 29 December 2025
ZBC-F+IR=1HE
ZECRFTCACNA
Substanial shareholder and IERRRE
s associate BHEA
M. Cheng Man Tai ¥ BEELLED 1,430,000 - - - 1,430,000 30 Decerber 2020 30 Decernber 2021 to 1.02
“ZTRECASHH 29 December 2025
ZEC-F2R=1HE
“ETRETCACTAA
Ms. Cheng Tsz Kwan' PRBYLY 185,000 - - - 185,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 fo 102
2 g 29 December 2025
“ET-E+TR=1RE
ZZCREHZRZTAA
Other employees Hftfes
In aggregate ot 13,330,000 - 635,000) - 12,695,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 o 102
S g 29 December 2025
T5T-Et°R=1RE
Z2CREHZRZTAA
18,725,000 - (635,000] - 18,090,000
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30. Share Option Scheme (continved)

Share Option Scheme (continued)
Notes:

(1) The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately
before the date of grant of the share options was HK$1.00.

(2)  Share options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
vest in the granfees in accordance with the timefable below:

—  30% of such options were vested on 30 December
2021 with an exercise period from 30 December 2021
to 29 December 2025;

—  30% of such options were vested on 30 December
2022 with an exercise period from 30 December 2022
to 29 December 2025; and

—  the remaining 40% of such options will be vested on 30
December 2023 with an exercise period from 30
December 2023 to 29 December 2025.

(3)  Mr. Cheng Man Tai resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 1 February 2022. The opening
balance of the number of outstanding share options at 1
January 2022 has been reclassified to take info account the
aforesaid changes.

(4] Ms. Cheng Tsz Kwan is the Senior Sales and Marketing

Manager and granddaughter of Mr. Cheng Man Tai and
Madam Ngok Ming Chu.
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30. Share Option Scheme (continved) 30. 1 i HE G B ()

Share Option Scheme (continued) HERGHEST R ()
The following share options were outstanding under the Share T AFERIERES 8B N ER1TENE
Option Scheme during the year: Pt

2021
BT

Weighted
average
exercise
price
g
TEE

HK$ Number

per share of options

SkBT BREHE

At 1 January nw—B—H 1.02 20,000,000
Cancelled/lapsed during  FEREUHE, /K

the year 1.02  (1,275,000)
At 31 December W+_B=+—H 1.02 18,725,000
No share options were granted under the Share Option FRLERBBRESAB R LERE (Z
Scheme during the year (2021:Nil). T —F ) o
The Company recognised a share option expense of BE_T__F+_A=+—HLFE"
HK$956,000 (2021:HK$2,124,000) during the year ended A B ERERFAZ 956,000 8T (ZF
31 December 2022. Z—4F 1 2,124,00087T) °
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had REEHR > ZABREBRESEIETA
18,090,000 share options outstanding under the Share 18,090,000173 FERE #E M R 1T o RIFA
Option Scheme. The exercise in full of share options would, NEIRITERERE » BEITERERITER
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in B RS E1TEEIMN 8,090,000 A7
issue of 18,090,000 additional ordinary shares of the NEZIBIE R ERIMNE AL 181,000 BT K4
Company and additional share capital of approximately B 15 &8 18,271,00078 7T (K 51 2517 B
HK$181,000 and share premium account of approximately SZAf) ©
HK$18,271,000 [before issue expenses).
At the date of approval of these financial statements, the REAPHERREMLEER A28 H
Company had 18,090,000 share options outstanding under 18,090,000 BB fz te 5t 818 T RV BB e A
the Share Option Scheme, which represented approximately HARITE > HEREBNERATEETR
4.28% of the Company'’s shares in issue as at that date. IE)4.28% ©
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31. Commitments 31. %%
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the PREREHEEER » AEEZAZWNT !

following commitments:

2021
BT
HK$'000
TFET
Confracted for commitments in respect of the  BEBEY% - MERREZ
acquisition of property, plant and equipment B I &I & 117,764
32. Contingent Liabilities 32. R A
At the end of the reporting period, confingent liabilities not Eﬁ‘?%ﬁ%ﬂﬂ?ﬁ AR R ST R AR
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: RABEMNT
2021
B
HK$'000
TFET
Bank guarantees given in lieu of property ABREYEBRERES R ALRIE
rental deposits and utility deposits BT M2 IRITIER 184
33.Notes to the Consolidated Statement  33. % £ 8 & i & % Wf &k
of Cash Flows
(a) During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to () R XEETMEREHEER
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of NEREEEREBEREIFRE
HK$44,868,000 (2021: HK$67,545,000) and WREDHA44,8080008T(Z=
HK$44,868,000 (2021: HK$67,012,000], Z — F:67,545000% T ) &
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for 44,868,000 Tw(ZF = — F:
properties and stores. 67,012,000%7t) °
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33. Notes to the Consolidated Statement

of Cash Flows (continved)

(b)

(c)

33. 55 A BB LW @

Changes in liabilities arising from financing acivities (h) MBEEBELEGREEH
Interest-
lease  bearing bank
liabilities borrowings
HESE stRIRITER
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
1 January 2021 N2 —%—HF—H 93,440 464,416
Changes from financing cash flows MERSRBEF (82,800) (124,127
New leases MEE 67,012 -
Termination of leases KIEFRE (3,929) -
Interest expenses FEREX 4,018 6,193
Covid-19-related rent concessions EHAARMEE Covid-19%15
from lessors HEEANEEER (818) -
Exchange realignment E R EEEE 1,942 =
At 31 December 2021 and RZ&2-_—F+"H=+—H
1 January 2022 rRZEZZF—F—H
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREE
New leases HAE
Termination of leases KIS
Inferest expenses FERMEZ
Covid-19-related rent concessions EHFE AR HE Covid- 19&15
from lessors MHENEEER
Exchange realignment BE 52 5

At 31 December 2022

A TETTHF+"A=+—H

Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement

of cash flows is as follows:

(0 FAERTAHEEE
D‘I’Aiﬁﬁ/}ﬂi%ﬁ’]%ﬂ Iﬁ%/}ILszm
BRUOE -

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

REEFN
Hﬁﬁlﬁgj W
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HK$'000
FHET
306,823
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34. Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

34 B BTz TR
RS REE S BT ANREE

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: mr:

Financial assets

TREE

Financial assets at
amortised cost

FissH At EZ
THEE
2021
g
HK$'000
FET
Trade receivables FE W & 5 BR R 51,943
Financial assets included in prepayments, DIBTENIE ~ HEM
deposits and other receivables HEWRIE SR B E 27,976
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIES%EY) 378,636
458,555
Financial liabilities ERAaE
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
FsH At EZ
ERaR
2021
BT
HK$'000
FET
Interestbearing bank borrowings sTRIRTTER 346,482
lease liabilities HEEE /8,865
Trade and bills payable P B 2 IR B (T T4 33,976
Financial liabilities included in other BEEEREMENHRIER
payables and accruals FESTRIBZ £MEE 114,662
573,985
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35. Financial Risk Management

35. B % B b A B H BR K BOR

Objectives and Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash,
short term deposits and interestbearing bank borrowings. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group's operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
frade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

Cash flow inferest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market inferest rafes. The Group is exposed fo both fair value
and cash flow interest rafe risks. The Group's exposure fo
market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's bank borrowings with floating inferest rates.

At present, the Group does nof infend to hedge ifs exposure fo
interest rate fluctuations. However, the Group will constantly
review the economic situation and ifs inferest rate risk profile,
and will consider appropriate hedging measures in future as
may be necessary.

At 31 December 2022, the loss before tax of the Group
would have been increased/decreased by approximately
HK$ 1,637,000 (2021: HK$1,732,000) if the interest rate
had been increased/decreased by 50 basis points with all
other variables held constant.

FEEZTESHTAGERS  BHF
st BIRTTEMR - LEEMT AT EH
NEATERECEXHME - ~EEEH
thrREMEERER @ NERKEZ RN
KREME SRR hEEBBREXHE
4o

FEETHITEZTZRABATREE
SNERE - EERBARBESERE - &
FERLHEEZEU LS ERE R ZBUER
ERERMIT -

B

RERENXARAEM TARRRER
ERTHMEEECMKBER - AEH
FIR AR AFERBERENRER &
EERAZMNREENHIZEE > T2HE
RERBFIHNRGAENRITERER ©

BAl > AEEEEHITA ARSI ERK
B o 2AM > ANEEERE ARE BN
HFREBRRR  TEEEEREEHEE
B iE S RV hE o

B2 _EF TR SOERL » MFTA EAE
ERFAE KRB F+A=1—
H > AEBERKRATEEEIE M, 4
1,637,000 #7T (ZF2Z—4 : 1,732,000
BIT) ©
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35. 0 % B b o B H B R BUOR ()

35. Financial Risk Management

172

Objectives and Policies (continved)

Foreign currency risk

The Group carries on its sale and purchase fransactions mainly
in Hong Kong dollars and RMB. The Group does nof use
derivative financial instruments to profect against the volatility
associated with foreign currency transactions and other
financial assets and liabilities created in the ordinary course of
business. However, as the Group's net profit/(loss) is reported
in Hong Kong dollars, there will be a translation gain as a
result of the RMB appreciation, and vice versa. The majority of
the Group's operating assets are located in Mainland China
and are denominated in RMB.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rafe, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group's loss before fax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities).

S BE R B
FEETEUBTRARBETEER
5 o AEBEWELITESR T AREHMH
EEBBEZINERZREMERMEEK
BB ZKE) o M > ARNAEEZ
MR (B18) LUBTT 2 MARBHE
P RE R W » RZIFA » REEKER
MIEEBEEIURPREKRE > TUARE
HIR o

TRIRHBEMEHEE - EFTA
SIBEEERRROERT A EE R
RATAES A RISEX T A IR A B S
BB (MR EREEREENATE
28 o

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in RMB rate in loss
AR before tax
i ok PR AIASIE
(F&R) gm0 GRL)
% HK$'000
TFET
2022 k- oo
I Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB B TR ARERE
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB B TR AREAE
2021 BT
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT AREBERE 5 (465)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB HWATREAREHE (5) 465
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35. Financial Risk Management

35. %5 Al b 4 B H B K BUR ()

Objectives and Policies (confinued)

Credit risk

The Group frades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish
fo trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and on an individual basis. Each of the
customers has been attached with a trading limit and any
excess of the limit must be approved by the general manager
of the operation unit. Under the tight control of the credit terms
and defailed assessment of the creditworthiness of individual
cusfomers, the Group's exposure to bad debts is maintained at
minimal.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure fo credit risk based on the Group's credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end sfaging classification as at 31 December.

The amounts presenfed are gross carrying amounts for financial
assefs.

As at 31 December 2022

(B
FEBEENZREERFNERETR
7 o REBEFEBNEER  FAARUEE
FRETRZNEFRIREBEERERR
FF o lb5h » ZEETFRBERS BB
HigeR - AEEHRZERRUEZR
38 BUHIRBEZ#W ARSI ZEEU A
KIEHE - ARNAEBREEER > 8
HERZF ZEEFFRTL > WEAER
Z IRER R SRR ©

RAE R R FAL 5 H

ReREERE  ZEEBREEZER
+TZR=+—HEBEAHER (FRIFEM
ERBANH TN ERIRAE IR E
%) Uk FRDEINE o

W2+ A=+—H

Trade receivables* MR E SR *
Financial assets included in SABATE BER
prepayments, deposits and HthsEIER
other receivables FRHEE
— Normal** —EE**
— Doubfful** — RIg**
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEN
— Not yef past due — kg

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8R M
FERE 2TRBEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
EAl2 B2REE EK] 2 fiferE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Fér Fé7 FH7 Fi7 FiE7
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35. Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (continved)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
As at 31 December 2021

35. 0 % B b o B H B R BUOR ()

EERRE &
RARERERIH (&)
R-E_—%+"A=+—H

12-month
ECls lifetime ECls
12{8R T
EEER 2HRBEERE
Simplified
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Tofal
51 FBER 5 2MEEL ERYE #EA % st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET FET FET
Trade receivables* R B AR * = - - 57,552 57,552
Financial assets included in HABMRIE  BER
prepayments, deposits and HtrEEIa
other receivables SHEE
— Normal** —EE* 27,976 = = = 27,976
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEN
— Not yef past due — HAEH 378,636 = = = 378,636
406,612 = = 57,552 464,164

* %

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in note 21 fo the financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered fo
be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the
credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be

"doubtful”.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to meet all

contractual financial commitments as they fall due. The Group's
objectives are to maintain a prudent financial policy, to
monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain a
contingency plan for funding to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient cash to meet ifs liquidity requirement.
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35. Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies (confinued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group continued fo enjoy adequate cash position with cash
and cash equivalents amounting to HK$380,178,000 (2021:
HK$378,636,000) as at 31 December 2022. The Group
financed its operations and investment activities by infemally
generated cash flows and bank borrowings. The maturity profile
of the Group's financial liabilifies as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, was as

35.

S 5 I B 4 B H AR I BOR ()

mBEEER (&)

RIE__F+_-_FA=+—H » xEF#
BEARBREZHBENRR  HIRS KR
£ % BYA380,178,0008 T (ZE_—
1 378,636,00087T) c ZEBEFEBEN
EHEEZIRERMIBITER > BEEHEK
KRETHRMES - RBRSHBEESEH »
AEBIRBENRBIRNTGEZ SME

follows: BEIHAEWNT :
Within
1 year or Over
ondemand 1o 5 years 5 years Total
—F R
BEREE —ERf BiBnFE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr THT FET THT
2022 ZE-CF
Inferestbearing bank borrowings stRSRfTER
lease liabilifies HE&R
Trade and bills payable P B 2 RM R B2
Other payables and accruals HtE A IE R e IE
2021 ot Sl 3
Inferestbearing bank borrowings sTEIRITERR 62,315 295,340 - 357,655
lease liabilities HEE&E 52,747 31,388 1,688 85,823
Trade and bills payable BN EZRAKENRE 33,976 - - 33,976
Other payables and accruals HihE N HIE R B EIE 110,215 4,447 - 114,662
259,253 331,175 1,688 592,116
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35. Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies (continved)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group is also exposed to liquidity risk through the granting
of financial guarantees, further details of which are disclosed
in note 32 fo the financial statements.

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will
be able fo continue as a going concem while maximising the
refurn fo the owners through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance where appropriate. No change was made in
the obijectives, policies or processes for managing capital

during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt which
includes bank borrowings and equity affributable to owners of
the Company. Equity atfributable to owners of the Company
comprises issued share capital and reserves as disclosed in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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35. Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (confinued)

Capital management (continued)

The Company monitors capital using a gearing rafio, which is
total bank borrowings divided by the equity aftributable to
owners of the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of
the reporting periods were as follows:

35. %5 Al b 4 B H B K BUR ()

BEXREE @)
RABDBBEERRLRRE (ANRITE
ABTR AR AR HEA AEIGRE) BT
B - RIREREBEESGLERNT ¢

2021
BT —F
HK$'000
FET
Inferestbearing bank borrowings sHRIRITER 346,482
Equity attributable to owners KATER NEEED
of the Company 2,516,273
Gearing rafio BESEBLEX 13.8%
36. Statement of Financial Position of 36. A 2 w] B R DL R
the Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the KABREART AR RRIWT -
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2021
s
HK$'000
FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries KRB A ZEm 924,823
CURRENT ASSETS WEEE
Prepayments FAfIE 275
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIBESZEY) 213
Total current assefs MENE EAAE 488
CURRENT LIABILITIES hEA&E
Other payables and accruals HnpEN FIB R Bt =A 2,757
Net current liabilities MENEEHE (2,269)
Net assets BESE 022,554
EQUITY =
Share capifal %N 4,224
Reserves (Note) #E (Ha2) 918,330
Total equity Y 922,554
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36. Statement of Financial Position of 36. 4 A\ BRI % (@)
the Company (continued)

Note: BiaE
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RABEERENT !
Share
premium Contributed  Share option Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total
R ER BomE  BRERR R st
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
liE3 FET FET FET FET TET
At 1 January 2021 RZZ2Z—F—F—H 386,512 381,248 12 175,033 942,805
Loss for the year and tofcl FEREREE2ERAR
comprehensive expenses for the year - - - [7,591) (7,591
Equitysefiled share opfion arrangements — IREA REERER S - - 2,124 - 2,124
2020 final dividend declared and paid ~ BEIRRIKT B BREXLIRE 14 = = = [10,560) (10,560)
2021 interim dividend ZECFHERE 14 - - - (8,448) (8,448)
At 31 December 2021 RIB_—#+"A=1+-H
and 1 January 2022 R-E-—F#—HF—H
Loss for the year and fofal FEFEREELEREZAE
comprehensive expenses for the year
Share opion lapsed BRERN
Equitysetfled share opfion arrangements BB B RERRERHE
At 31 December 2022 RZE_"#+"A=+-H
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the ARBNEBHERERD AR BRREBSANE
then nef assefs of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant MEARNENEEFEBHARRMILET
fo the group reorganisation, over the nominal value of the share ERRMBIEAE B RREEARTIERHE
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor and the then #910,000,000 &R EEO0.01 BRI ERFIR
existing 10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each credited as fully paid BRMG - BEFEHEREE  RINEBIRK
af par. Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, the share BRERAIDKTEAARRR  ERREER
premium and contributed surplus may be distributed to the KRS BHE  AABMARBERREX
shareholders of the Company, provided that immediately following BAREEAEIER o

the date on which the dividend is proposed fo be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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37, i 2 ) Y R
ARE BB AR BEENT

37. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
registration and fully paid share/ equity attributable
Name business registered capital to the Company Principal activities
AL, BETRAR
#iE MRS E R Bin,/ERMES VNS SR i TEEH
2021
_EC-F

Embry Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 Invesiment holding

ZHRADNERAT &H 10087 REER

Embry (Changzhou) Garments Lid. PRC/ RMB176,200,000 100 Manufacture of ladies’ brassieres,
("Embry CZ"|** Mainland China A K% 176,200,000 70 panties,swimwear and sleepwear

ZHF (B ﬂ ) BREeA IR HE/HEIARE and property investment
(FZFE M) ** HELERE

N ARRERRYERE

Embry (China) Garments Lid. PRC/ HK$ 11,000,000 100 Trading of ladies’ brassieres, panties,
(Embry SZ)** Mainland China 11,000,000 %7t swimwear and sleepwear
B (RE) REBR B/ HEIARE BELILE - A48 « A RRIEKR
( ZHFER) **

Embry (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong  Ordinary HK$45,000 100 Trading of ladies’ brassieres, panties,
("Embry HK") B#HE  *Nonvoting deferred swimwear and sleepwear and
ZH% (B8) BRAF HK$4,500,000 property investment
(rzF5EH) EiER 4500057 BEZIHME ~ iE

*ERRRIEIER IKRER R ERE
4,500,000 %7t

Embry (Macau) Fashion Company Macau MOP100,000 100 Trading of ladies” brassieres, panties,
Limited [Embry [Macau] el 100,000;2M91& swimwear and sleepwear
Pronto A Vestir, Limitada) BEELMUMRE - A

ZH|F (BP9 BEARAT KRR BER

Embry (Shandong] Garments PRC/ US$28,000,000 100 Manufacture and trading of
Limited {"Embry SD"|** Mainland China 28,000,000t ladies' brassieres, panties,

ZHE (LR) REBRAF HE/HEIARE swimwear and sleepwear
(rEFFEWR) ** HEREELHHE

PR KRR ER

Embry (Shandong] Trading Limited PRC/ RMB3,000,000 - Trading of ladies’ brassieres, panties,
("Embry Trading’) Mainland China A R#3,000,00075 swimwear and sleepwear

ZHF (LFR) BRBRAT RE/HEIARE BELILHE - /5
(rZ#5E5)) IR BETR

Embry (Shanghai) Company PRC/ HK$238,000,000 100 Design, research and development
Limited ["Embry SH')** Mainland China 238,000,000%7 and frading of ladies' brassieres,

ZH (J: i8) BIRAR B/ HEIARE panties, swimwear and sleepwear
(T Lig)) ** and property investment
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37. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

(continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: [continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and
regisiration and fully paid share/
Name business registered capital
Erai AT BRIRERE
e M REENE R&fn /&
Embry Gaments Limited BVI US$1
HRELHE 1 %70
Embry Group Limited | “EGL”) BVI US$472
HEBELHE 472%7
Embry Infernational Limited BVI US$1
ZHBERBRAT HEBELHE 1 %7
Gallin Invesiments Limited Hong Kong HK$2
EEREBRAT & 2%
Whistleblower limited BVI US$1
HBRLHE 1%7

The non~oting deferred shares carry no rights fo dividends (other than
for any financial year during which the net profit of Embry HK
available for dividend exceeds HK$ 1,000,000,000,000), no rights
fo vofe af general meetings and no rights fo receive any surplus in
return of capital in a winding-up in respect of the first

HK$500,000,000,000,000.

**  Embry CZ, Embry SZ, Embry SD, Embry Trading and Embry SH
are registered as whollyforeignowned enterprises under the PRC
law.

Except for EGL, all of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held
by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give defails of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

38. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2023.
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37. LEWME 7 & F @)

ARETENBRBRFBELT  (8)

Percentage of
equity atiributable
to the Company Principal acivifies

HAREEREES L FEEH

2021
“EC—F

100 Invesiment holding
REER

100 Invesiment holding
REER

100 Invesiment holding
REER

100 Invesiment holding
REER

100 Holding of trademarks
FEER

Y EREEEERR I I A YRR B
(R 2 F75 & 8 o] (#8894 7 8 18
1,000,000,000,000 & 7T B9 1F fa] Bf L 4F

BN ~ RIBRRA & LRERIFEEF
B E 500,000,000,000,00087T £ [2]
BEOIEIEET

o RFEEIN  ZREFY LR UIR
ZHFE G RZFE L AFIIIRE P E
BB EINELE o

PRECLSN » LHFFE B ATIRARTE
EERA o

EREBIFATNBLRE  EFDBREEF
MEBARETERELFEFEENBREE
EEEFENETERD - EFRA 0 = H
HthME AR ERERRRER

38. Hb ik S B %

MBBREN B =F=A_+=HES
SEHUERIRRETIEE o
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